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1. INTRODUCTION
1.1.  Background of RSSB.
RSSB law is governed by Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board
effective from 169 February 2021, RSSB is. categonsed as a speclahsed organ and has a legal

personality, administrative and financial autonomy. The mission of RSSB is to manage and promote
social security in Rwanda. The supervising anthority of RSSB is the: Ministry in charge of finance.

Responsibilities of RSSB

Responsibilities of RSSB are.the following:.

1. To manage and promote social security in Rwanda {old age pension, survivorship benefits,

nonoccupational invalidity benefits, occupatlonal hazards insurance, maternity leave benefits

scheme, health insurance and the 1ong-tenn saving schemie);

To register employers, employees, beneficiaries and voluntary contributors in social sccurlty

schemes under its management;

To-menitor, collect and manage social security contributions;

To conduct audit and inspection to enisure compliance with social security laws;.

To pay social security benefits to beneficiaries;

To invest in Rwanda or abroad in accordance with relevant laws;

To contribute to the elaboration of sogial security policy;

To contribute in designing strategies for shelter, adequate nutrition, education, support due to loss of

jobs, provision for family and poverty reduction with intention to achieve social welfare;

. To advise the Government on matters relating to social security;

10, To establish relations and collaborate with other regional or international institutions with stmilar
mission;

11. To petform such other duties as iay be assigned by Law.

2

e B

1.2,  Supervising authority of RSSB
RSSB is‘supervised by the Ministry of Finanee and Economic Planning.

1.3. Management organs of RSSB

‘Management organs of RSSB are the following:

1) Board of Directors;

2} ‘General manageinent.

1.3.1 Boatd of Directors

‘The Board of directors is responsible for providing governance and oversight over the management of

RSSB. The composition of the Board of Directors as.at 30™ June 2023 was as follows:

NAMES _ _ -Role on the board N
Dr Christopher-J ohn WALES ' { Chairperson: Resigned 20 November ;2022
Mr, Marcel MUKESHIMANA 1. Ag. Chairperson: Appointed 21 Nov2022
Prof. Senait FISSEHA _ Member

Mr. Patrick MARARA. SHYAKA | Mermber

Mr. Kephers USENGE o 1 Member

Ms. Liliane BWAKIRA . Member

Dr. Violette AYINGENEYE ' I Member

Mr. Yves GATSIMBANYI . | Member

Mr: Alain NDAYISHIMIYE | Member
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1.3.2 General management.

The day to day running of RSSB.is ent_;"usted to the: management team headed by the Chief Executive
Officer. He is assisted by a Deputy Chief Executive Officer.. Officers who served on the General

_g Directoraie for the year ended 30® June 2023 were as follows:
:f NAMES _ . FOSITION . | Comments .
—_ Mr. RUGEMANSHURO Regis | Chief‘Executive Officer | Appointed August 2022
'3 "Mrs. Louise KANYONGA Deputy Chief Executive Officer 1 Appointed August 2022
Mr. RUGEMANSHURO Regis | Director General Up to August 2022
- Mr. Philippe WATRIN Cliref Investment Officer- Appointed August 2022
: M. Philippe WATRIN T Deputy Director General in charge of Fund | Upto August 2022
: " Management : - SRR S :
Dr. HITIMANA Regis i Chief Benefits Officer Appeinted August 2022
i Dr, HITIM'AﬁA Regis TDeputy Diréctor General in charge of Benefits Up to August 2022°
: Mr. MURINDABIGWI Innocent | Head of Finance and Contributions Department 1 Served entire 2022/2023.
—‘ Mr. GASANA KWIZERA Fric i Head of Investment Department ! Served entire 2022/2023
‘ Mr. RULISA Alexis ' " Head of CBHI Department i Served entire 2022/2023
' Ms. MUJAWABEGA Yvonne | Head of Pension and Occupational Hazards | Served entire 2022/2023.
- Dr. UMUTESE Lysétte { Head of Medical Department Served entire 2022/2023
{ Mr. GATERA Augustin 1"Head of Long-Terni Saving.Scheme (Ejo Hezd) Served entire 20222023
1.4.  Registered office
Rwanda Social Security Board Headquarters
: RSSB Building
- Plot 1003 Ubumwe Cell,
African Union Boulevard
Kiyoviy, Nyarugenge
_— PO BOX 250/6655 Kigali
Email : Info@rssbaw
Toll Free line 4044
o 1.5.  Auditors
_ The Auditor General
. Office of the' Auditor General for State:Finances
Kimihnrura avenue du Lac Muhazi NEC, OAG, RRA Complex
B.P 1020,
— Kigali- Rwanda
1.6, Bankers
- Bank of Kigali Limited GT Bank (Rwanda) Limited
POBox 175 P O Box 331
Kigali; Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda
1 & M Bank Rwanda Limited Access Bank (Rwanda) Limited
----- P O Box 354 P O Box 2059
— Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda
| .
National Bank of Rwanda Zigama Credit Aind Saving Society
PO Box 331 P OBox 4772
_3 Kigali, Rwanda Kigali; Rwanda
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‘Bank Populdire du Rwanda Limited

1.6. Bankers— Continued

Development Bank of Rwanda Limited

PO Box 1348 'P.O Box 1341

Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda

Ecobank Rwanda Limited Cogebanque Limited

P O Box 3268 P.0. Box 5230

Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda

KCB Rwanda Limited: Equity Bank Rwanda Limited
P O Box 5620 P O Box 494

Kigali, Rwanda Kigali, Rwanda

Unguka Bank Plc Rwanda 'AB Bank Rwanda Limited
P.0 BOX: 6417 Kigali. P.O Box 671,

Kigali, Rwarida Kigali, Rwanda

Letshego Rwanda Limited Bank of Aftica

P.O. Box 4062 P.O. Box 265,

Kigali, Rwanda Kigali-Rwanda

NCBA Barik Rwanda PLC

Kigali Heights, 8th Floor, Boulevard de

I"'Umuganda

P O Box 6774,

Kigali, Rwanda

1.7 Investment advisors for Ejo Heza

Rwanda National Investment Trust Ltd (RNIT)
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE.YEAR ENDED 30 JUNF 2023

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors are pleased submit their report together with the financial statements for the year-ended 30
June 2023 which discloses the state of affairs of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB)

1) RSSE mandate

RSSB was established . and is govemed by Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 which replaced Law N°
04/2015 of 11/03/2015, law modifying and complementing Law n° 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing
Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB) and determining its mission, organization, and functioning.
RSSB contintes to deliver onits mandate and serves members through the following six (6) schemes:

i} Pension

ii) Occupational Hazards

iii} Medical

iv) ‘CBHI

v) Matemity

vi) Ejo Heza

2) Owr Vision, Mission and Core Values

Our Vision _

“To envision a comprehensive social security system that addresses the social security needs of all
Rwandans”

Qur Mission _
“To provide high quality social secarity services, ensure efficient collection, benefits: provision,
managenient and investment of members® funds.”

Our Core (Corporate) Yalues
In trying to achieve our vision and mission, we serve with empathy, creativity, mtegnty, and
determination by following the ICARE principles:

Tntegrity:
Collaboration.
Accountabxhty
Respect
Excellence

3) Principal activities

Law no. 009/2021 of 16;’02]2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board requires RSSB to manage
and promote social security in Rwanda and provide health insurance, as-defined under two broad
categories below:

i) Social security: Government strategies aimed at providing to people living in Rwanda health
insurance and social protection from effects based on lack or reduction of income due to the
following reasons:

Old age.

Death,

Disability.
Occupational hazards.
Sick leave,

Maternity leave.

e po o

The strategies may also provide for shelter, adequate nutrition, education, support due to less of job,.
provision for family and povetty reduction with iniention to achieve social welfare,
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i) Health insurance: This will cover:
b. Community-based health insurance scheme.
c. Medical insurance scheme for pubhc servants governed by general statutes governing public
servants; by . spemal statutes or by law regulating labour in Rwanda; Employees in private

institutions -affiliated to the compulsory health insurance schcme, and Pensioners who
contributed to the health insurance scheme.

RSSB has responsibility to-manage-and promote:
i) ‘Socialsecurity in Rwanda
»  Old age pension, survivership benefits, nonoecupational invalidity benefits (Pexision scheme)
= Qccupational hazards insurance (Occupational Hazards scheme)
n  Maternity leave benefits scheme
= Long-term saving scheme
ii) Health insurance
» Community-based health insurance scheme

®  Medical insurance scheme

4).  RSSB Autonomy

This is the first year of operations under the new legal framework for RSSB as a special organ. The
Directors. have undertaken various reforms to facilitate RSSB to operate as an autonomous entity as
envisaged under Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board effective
from.16th February 2021. The Board has approved key policies, procedures and guidelines required to
operationalise Law Law no. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board.

5)  Strategic reforms
The Board continues to prioritise irhplementation of reforms defined in the RSSB 2020-2025 strategic

plan, Annual workplans and budgets as well as performance targets are all aligned to ensure focused
implementation of strategic-plan activities to drive the reforms for transformation for RS SB.

- 6)  Governance and management of RSSB

Members of the Board and management team that served during the year is listed under section 1.3
above,

7)) Restructuring and staffing

The Board completed the initial activities-of 'the--r_estructuﬁilg' process. and has created a new structure for
RSSB. The process of staffing commenced during the year. The Chief Executive Officer and Deputy

Chief Exccutive Officer were appointed by Cabinet and approved by the Senate in August 2022. This

key activity will continue to-ensure that the approved structure is filled with the required staff.
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‘8)  Membership of RSSB schemes
Membership of the different schemes is as.présefited below:.

i) Membership Pension and occupational Hazards schemes

a) Total members as at-30 June

-Contributing members {b).

Pensioners (¢)

Deférred members

b) Contributing menibers
At'start of year

Joiners

Less:

Retired (with pension or lumpsum}
Secessions (withdraw/deferred)
Atend of year

©) Pensioners

At start of the year

Coutributing members who retired with pension.

“Widows or widowgrs™ pension and orphans becoming payable

Members who got lunip sum

Less: Deaths and other secessibnists

At-end of year

ii) Membership of the Medical Insurance (RAMA)

Active members;

Affiliates

Dependents
Total

iif) Membership of the Community Based Health Insurance

Population coverage
Target population
Active contributors

Coverage rate

2023
721,871

50,265

1.217.280
1989416
678,713
168,368

847,081

[
R
[
L=

47,776
2,774
2,808
3,452

‘55,759
6,545

2023
223,123
385313

2023
12,599,305

11,421,283

90.7%

2022
678,713
47776
1,266:311
1,992,800

683,653
158,911

842,564

43,623
3418
2,058
3345
52,444

2022
193,286
360762

2022
12,295,609,
10,693,869

87%
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iv) Membership of the Maternity Leave Benefits Scheme

2023 2022
Contributors 714,960 673,418
Number of beneficiaries 3,737 3479

v) Membership of Ejo Heza Scheme
| | 2023 2022
Contributors 2,714,612 1,953,249
Number of beneficiaries 4,042 1,607

9)  RSSB performance and financial position as at 30 June 2023
2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Performance during the year-
Net confributions froth members 180,402 140,861
Net investment incotie 105,475 106,620
Net increase in fund assets. 276,193 235,868
Financial position as-at 30 June 2023
Total assets 3,059,347 1,776,413
Net assets _ 2,001,385 1,724,998
10) RSSB investment portfolio-at 30 June 2023
2023 _ _ 2022
Frw'millions. As Yge of total Frw'millions
assets

Investment properties-and advances to contractors 256,186 13% 246,020
Equity investments 610,514 31% 543,897
.g?ggkm%ztl ;flz::ms, corporate bonds& papers, Deposits 1.110.187 55% 017 147
Total 1,976,887 09e/, 1.707.064

'Ii) Actuarial valuation

The Board commissioned an- actuarial valuation of the Maternity Leave benefit scheme (MLBS). The

actuarial valuation was petformed by Muhanna and Co. Actuaries AND Consultants on behalf of the

Board-and considered data up to 30 June 2022, The-valuation report was issued on 11 -May 2023 whose

results have been dlsclosed in these financial statements.

The Directors have relied on the actuarial valuation done in 2020 for three schiemes: Pension, Medical and
QOccupational Hazards. The Directors are of the view that circumstances and assumptions made have not
significantly changed to alter the conclusions-and recommendations made in the 2020 actuarial valuation.

The Board will.commission another actuarial valuation in accordance with company policy.
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12) Going concern

The Directors have made an assessment of RSSB’s ability to continue operating as a going concern.
Nothing has come to the Board’s attention to make it doubt RSSB’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board is implementing various reforms and initiatives to improve RSSB capacity,
operational efficiency, portfolio mix and return on investment. There is growth in contributions and total
assets and this trend is expected to continue and improve as more reforms take root. Accordingly,
financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

The Dlrﬁﬁe&s rep | was s1gncd by ordf:r of the Board and on behalf of the Board Directors on

Ir MAUKESHIMANA Marcel
Ag Chairperson — Board of Directors

10
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

3. STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial- statements that give a true and fair
view of Rwanda. Social Security Board (RSSB) comprising the statement of financial position as

at 30 June 2023, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in Me__mber funds and
reserves and cash flows for the year then ended, and the. riotes to the financial statements, which

include a summary of significant accounting policies and other éxplanatory notes as set out on pages

12 to 182, in.accordance ‘with IFRS Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board ( IFRS Standards) and in the manner required by the provisions of Law no. 009/2021 of
16/02/2021 establishing Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB).

The Directors’ responsibility includes the maintenance of accounting records that may berelied upon in
the preparation of f{inancial statements,. overseeing: and endorsing the designing, implementing
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of these.

_financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whetherdue to fraud or error; selecting
-and -applying appropriate accounting policies; making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances. The Directors are dlso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Board.

The Directors have made an assessment of the ability of Rwanda Social ‘Security Board (RSSB) to

‘continue as going concern and have no reason to believe that the business will not be'a going concern:in

the year ahead from the date-of this statement.

In our opinion, the financial statements of Rwanda Social Sécurity Board (RSSB) for the year ended
30 June 2023 give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of Rwanda Social Security
Board (RSSB). We further -accept responsibility for maintenance of accounting reécords that may
be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements and ensuring adequate system of internal
controls to safeguard assets of Rwanda Social Security Board (RSSB).

11
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3. TFINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1. Statement of comprehensive income

Dealings with members

Contributions

Benefits paid

Net additions from dealings with members

Returns on investments

Investment income

Change:in fair value of financial assets at.fair value through profit or
loss

Change in fair value.of investment properties

Write back of prior'year

Realized (loss)/gain on disposal of assets

Impairment losses on financial assets held at amortised cost

Less: _investm_ent'management expenses

Net returns on investments

‘Grariis,

Other income

Expenditures

Staff costs

Administrative expenses
Dcpreci'aﬁon and amortization charge
Other expenses

Total expenses

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income
Revaluation gain en property and equipment (administrative assets)

Increase in net assets for the year

Notes

10

14
15
16

17

18
19
20

21
22

23

2023

Frw'millions

347,599
(167,197
180,402

124,619
(17,247)

0 .

o
658
(373}
(1,979)

105475

14,013

7,691

(11,634
{9,037)
{2:206)
18,530

(31.389)

'276.193

The notes on pages 17-to 182 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2022
Frw'millions

(143.583)
140,861

95,128
9,601
7,168

0

(2,428)
(691}

(2,248)

106,620

14,495
2,3%
(11,010),
(6.716)
(1,516)

(11,389)
(30,630)

12
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3.2. Statement of financial position

Assets

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Investment properties

Investment properties in the process of construction
Assets held for sale

Equity investments

Corporate bonds

Treasury bonds

Treasury bills

Commercial papers

Loan and advances to third parties
Mortgage loans

Inventory

Advances to contractors

Dividend and other income receivable
Other assets

Due to/(Due from) other schemes
Deposits with financial institutions

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

Less: Liabilities

Amounts retained on construction contracts
Benefits payable

Other payables

Deferred income

Total liabilities

Net assets available for benefits
Represented by:

Capital

Retained earnings and Accumulated member funds
Revaluation reserve

Fair value reserve

Unallocated pension contributions reserve
Statutory reserves

Ejo Heza member Savings

Total reserves and member funds

Notes

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42

43
44

45
46
47
49
48
50

2023
Frw'millions

14,955
1,732
230,118
22,668
0
610,514
73,829
518,686
64,070
57,938
29,936
32

245
3,400
13,423
22,138
0
268,100
127,565

2,059,347

2,526
37,271
16,860

1,305
57.962
2,001,385

1,232
967,819
94,982
(37.837)
2,154
934,200
38,835

2022
Frw'millions

14,400
1,774
227,604
12,031
0
543,897
57,699
285,013
62,399
29,751
33,935
11

275
6,385
8,870
10,083
0
279,136
203,149
1,776,413

1,453
29,204
19,920

837
51.415

1.724.998

1,232
816,494
94,982
(20,590)
1,964
803,259
27,656

Mr-Marcel MUKESHIMANA

Ag Chairperson — Board of Directors

13
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3.4. Statement of cash flows

- Ciish flows from operating activities:

Increase in net assets for-the year
Adjusted for':

Depreciation and amortization
Invéstment income

Reilized loss on disposal of assets (equity investiients, PPE, Assets held for

sale and fnvestment propérties)

Change in fair value of equity investments
Change in fair value of investment propertics
Write:-back/write-offs

Unrealised forcign exchange loss -
Government giants

Impairment provisien (IFRS 9. ECLs)
Adjustinent of opening balances

In-kind expenditure

In-kind income:-

Operating income for changes in working capital

{Increase)/Decrease in-advance to confractors
(Increasc)/Decrease in other assets.
(In¢rease)/Decrease in amoun_t_s‘_-duc-_frum/(due'to} ‘other schemes
(Increase)/Degréase in-inventory

- Increasef(Decresase) in medical/matermnity claims payables
Increase/{Decrease) in other payablés
Increasef{Decrease) in confract retentions
Increasef{ Décredse in deferred income
Increase in unallocated pension contributions:reserve
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows used in investing activities:
Dividend income received
Rent received

Other intcrest iflcome received (current aceounts, call deposit and mortgage

loans)

Purchases for-investment property under coristruction
Purchasc of property-and equipment

Purchdse of intangible asset

Purchaseé of investment properties

Purchaseof equity investments

Proceeds from disposal of Equity invéstments
Purchase of Corporate bonds

Receipts from settlement of Corporate bqnc]js {Interest-and principal}

Receipts from Treasury bond - coupon intércst income feceived
‘Receipts from Treasury bill maturities (Interest and principal)
Receipts from Commerical papers maturities (principal and-intercst)
Investment in Treasury bonds
Investment in Treasury bills
Investmient in Comuiercial papers
Receipts from settlement of Toans and advarices to-third parties
- Additional Toans dnd advances.-to third parties during the year
Increase/(Decrease) in mortgages. '

2023
Frw' millions

276,193

2,206
(124,619)

657

17,247

0

U

f(14,01-3’j:

575

54

0
0
158,301

3,051
112,174}
©

31
8,067

(3,053)

1,073
468

28

156,011

15,497
3,691

(10,638
(2.715)
o

(27,155)

(86,948)
3,849
(15,500)

7.438

63,965

94,325

4,628

(254,684)
(91,308}
(27:324)

3,987

i}

27

2022
Frw' millicns

233,742

1,515
(95,128)

2,428

(9:691)
(7.168)
1,061
(100}
(8,835)
691
(2313

0

0
118,286

574
(2.912)
0

14

983
3,205
495
155

8
120,809

8713
3:646

(4,347)
(86)

)
(3,002)
(76,085)
0
(34,000)

4,206

44,590
144,537
15,930
{100,068)
(104,184)
(13,085)
1876

0
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Placement of term deposits during the ycar
Settlement of termi deposits during the year
(Incresse)/Decrease m.cll deposit

Refund of prior-year purchase of Investment properties - Rusororo plots.

Proceeds from disposal
Net cash used-in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
“Governmens grants

Government grants refunded

Increase in unidentified member contributions

Net cash from financing activities

Net inicrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash.and cash equivalents at I July
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

2023

Frw" millions
(160,481).

198,237

X2

Q
23.983

LAY

(245,529)

13,934
0
0
13,934

203,149
127,565

The notes on pages 17 to 182 form an integ__r_al part of these financial statements.

2022

Frw' millions
(197,683)
236,654

68,688
134,461
203,149

16
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD o
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

" 4. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ‘Reporting ¢ntity

Rwinda Social Security Board was established by Law n° 45/2010 of 14/12/2010 establishing Rwanda
Social Security Board (RSSB}) as modified and complemented by Law n® 04/2015 of 11/03/2015 which

was replaced by Law No. 009/2021 of 16/02/2021.
The Board: runs the following schiemes under one management. with each scheme governed by a specific
law:

= Pension and Occupational hazards scheme

»  Medical scheme

»  Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme.
e Maternity Leave scheme

» Long term savings scheme (Ejo Heza): Prime Minister Order No.58 of 4/04/2018 - Determining the.
admiinistrator of the Long-term savings scheme appointed RSSB as the administrator of the Long-term
saving scheme.

RSSB is required to manage atid promote social ‘security in Rwanda and prov1de health-insurance, as
defined under two broad categories below:

1) Social security in Rwanda
» QOld age pension, survivorship benefits, nonoccupational invalidity benefits (Pension scheme)
= Qccupational hazards insurance (Occupati_onal Hazards scheme)
» Maternity leave benefits scheme

* Long-term saving scheme

2} Health insurance

» Community-baséd health insurance scheme

. 3 Medical insurance scheme

2. Basis of accounting

a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared-in accordance with IFRS Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IFRS Standards). These are separate financial statemmenits
and are not consolidated, as would be required by IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements, in respéct
of the investees -over which the Board exercises control. The directors, in' their judgment believe that
despite this deviation, the financial statements provide reliable and useful information to its stakeholders.

Under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10, a parent’ entity that is an Investment entity is exempt from. consolidation if

that entity measures interests in subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Paragraph 27 of

IFRS 10 requires a-parent entity to determine if it is:an investment entify. An investiient entity is an entity

that:: '

1} Obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with
investment manageirient services;

17
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NOTES.TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continned)

Basis of accounting (Continued)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

2) Commits. to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investnient income, or both; and

3) Measures and evaluates the performance of substantiaily all of its mnvestiients on a fair value basis.

Accordingly, the directors have determined RSSB to be an investment entity as its mandate includes the
management of funds on behalf of contributing members to ensure the following.

1) Collects and. invests funds con_tnbu_ted by fund members providing investmert management serviées
over investments made on behalf of contributing members with aim of ensuring that long terin fund
obligations to contributirig members are miet as and when they fall due.

2) Commits to. contributing members to invest funds solely for returns from capital appreciation,
investment income or both.

3) And measures the performance of substantially all of its‘investments on a fair value basis.

Thie directors have thus chosen to apply the exemiption from consolidation under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10

and to account for RSSB interests in entities that qualify to be subsidiaries at fair value through profit or
loss.

In addition, under paragraph 18 of IAS 28, when an investment in an associate or-a joint venture is held by,
or is held indirectly through, an entity that isa venture capital organisation, or a mutual fund, unit trust and
similar entities inchuding investment-linked insurance funds, the entity may eleet to measure investments n
those associates and joint ventures at fair value throngh profit or loss:in accordance with IFRS 9. RSSB-as
an investment entity has elected to. measure its associates and joint ventures at. fair value through profit or
Toss. ‘The companies in which the Beoard has interests/shareholding and a summary of their key financial
data are disclosed in note 28 to these financial statements.

The Board has carefully evaluated the: mandatory consolidation requirements under paragraphs IFRS
10.B85E, IFRS 10.B85C and IFRS 10.B85D to the exemptions under paragraph 4B of IFRS 10 and are
satisfied that these requirements have been complied with,

b) Basis for measurement
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except where otherwise mentioned in

the policy notes. Financial assets including equity: investments designated at fair value through profit or
loss, investment properties, land and buildings and assets held for sale have been measured at fair value.

3. Functional and presentation ¢urrency

The financial statements are presented in Rwanda francs (Frw), which is the Board’s functional currency
and all values are presented in millions (*000,000), except where otherwise indicated.

18
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4. Use.of judgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the-application of thic Board’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from. these estimates.. Bstimates and underlying
assimptions are reviewed on an.ongoing basis. Revisions to accountihg estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate are revised and in any future periods affected. '

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within'the next. financial year are summarised below;

Financial assets nieasured at amertised cost

Critical estimates are made by the directors in determining. the recoverable amount of financial assets. The
carrying amount of financial assets receivables is set out-in Note:55(c) - Credit risk. Financial assets at
amortised cost include corporate bonds, treasury bonds, treasury bills, commercial papers, loans and
advances to third parties, mortgage loans, advances to contractors, dividend and other income receivable,
other assets, deposits with financial institutions, Bank balances.

Investinent Properties

The directors have made assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value of mvestment property (see
note. 7 and note 26)

Property and equipment

The directors have made assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value of 1land and buildings
reported undér property and equipment (see note 7 and note 24)

Equity investments

The directors have made assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value of equity investments (see_-
noté 7 and nicte 29),

In the process of applying the Branch's accounting policies, management ‘has inade judgments in

determiriing:

= Investment entity - The board has determined that it is an investment entity as defined in IFRS 10:
Consolidated Financial Statements.(see note 2 — Statement of compliance)

19
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD:
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Basis of accounting (Continned)

5. Significant ac’counting_pol'i'cie's

Significant accounting policiés set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the
financial statements.

a) Members’ funds

. The Board-is finded through contributions from members and investment income, Contributions are.

dccounted for as follows:
(i) Contributions from members

Conitributions from employees remitted by the employers are recognized on a cash basis. Contributions due
but not yet received at the end of the financial year are not accried. They are aceounted for and recognized
in subsequent years when received. The contributions remitted by employets for Pension, medical and
matemity are based on the respective laws for pension, medical and maternity schemes. Contributions for
CBHI are remitted directly by the beneficiaries and from other sources of income-as defined by the law.

(ii) Benefit pavments to members

Berefits to members.are accounted for on an accrual basis. Benefit payments made but not collected by
members are written back in the cash book-arid no liability thereof recognized in the financial statements.
(iii)  Actuarial valuation

The available actuarial valuation for the pension, occupational hazards and medi¢al benefit insurance
schemes- was performed using the financial information of the Board as at 30 June 2020 and incorporated
projectiofis for a 50 year period to 2070.Se¢ details in note 53.

The available actuarial valuation for the matemity leave scheme was performed using the financial

information of the Board as at 30 June 2022 and incorporated projections for a 50 year period t0-2072. The.

policy of the Board is to carry out actuarial valuations every three years. See detailsin note 143.

The policy of the Board is to carry out actuarial valuations every three years.

b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Board and
the reveriue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being madé. Revenue is measured
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment. The following specific récognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

(1) Interest income

For all financial instrumerits measured at amortised cost, interest income. or expense is recorded using the
Effective Interest Rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounits the estimated futire cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 10 the

net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.
(i) Dividends

Dividend income is recognised wher the right to receive dividends is established.

{iii) Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognized in the statement of comprehensive.on the straight-

line basis over the term of the property lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Significant accounting policies (Continued)

b) Revenue recognition continued
(iv) Other income

Other income comptises gains less. losses. related to trading assets and liabilities and includes gains from
disposal of Board’s assets and all realised-and unrealised foreign exchange differences.

¢) Foreign currencies

“Transactions in foreign currencies during the-year are transiated into Rwanda franes. at the exchange rate

rulitig at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the

‘teporting date are translated into Rwandan francs at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated to
Rwandan francs at the date when the fair vilie was determined. Foreign currency g gains and lesses arising
from translation are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.

d) Financial instruments
Financial Assets.
i)  Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; Fair Value through

Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) or Fair Value Th:ough Profit/Loss (FVTPL).

A finaricial asset is measured at-amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and i is not

designated as-at FVIPL:

— the asset is held within a business model -whose objective is to hold asséts to collect contractual
‘cash flows; and

—— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPL

A debt instrument is measured at'FVOCI only. if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business thodel whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

— ‘the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI,

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not beld for trading, the RSSB may irrevocably
elect to-present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

All othier firiancial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.
In addition, on initial recognition, the RSSB may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise

meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FYTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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NOTES.TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueéd)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continuerd)
Firiancial Instryments (Continued)

O

ik

- a ‘Business model assessment

: The RSSB makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a
o~ portfoho level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided
to manageément. The information considered- includes:

_ — thie stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operatlon of those policies in practice. In
1 particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue,

mairitaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the
duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the
assets;

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the RSSB’s management;

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (arid the financial assets held within that
business model) and its sttategy for how those risks are-managed;

— how managérs of the business are compeiisated (c.g. whether compensation is based. on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected); and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior périods, the reasons. for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity: ‘However, information about sales activity is not considered
in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the RSSB’s stated objective: for managing

B the financial assets is‘achieved and how cash flows are realised.

_ The RSSB’s business comprises. primarily investment in commercial entities for earning dividends,
- corporate bonds and government paper (treasury bills and bonds) loans to custorners that are held for
collecting contractual cash flows,

Certain debt securities are held by the RSSB in a separate portfolic for long-teml vield. These
securities may be sold, but such sales are not expected to be more than infrequent. The RSSB considers
that these securities are held within a business model whose objectlve is to hold assefs to collect the
contractual cash flows.

Certain other debt securities are held by the RSSB 'in separate portfolios to meet everyday liquidity
. needs, The RSSB seeks to minimise the costs of managing thése liquidity needs and therefore actively
sy manages the retuin on the portfoho That return consists of collecting contractual cash flows as well as
? ga:ms and losses from the sale-of financial assets. The investment strategy often results in sales activity
that is significant i value. The RSSB considers that these finaricial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and sellmg financial
assets,

]

Financial assets that are held for- trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair

H value basis are measuted at FVTPL because they are heither held to collect contractual cash flows nor
held both to collect contractual cash flows and to self financial assets.
= Assessment of whether comtractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on

initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is défined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit

= risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during.a particular period of time and for other
2 ‘basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin

- 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continuned
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the RSSB considers the contractual terms of
the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term. that
«could change the timing or amount of contractual cash-flows such-that it would not meet this condition.
In making the assessment, the RSSB considers:

— contingent events that woiild change the amount and timing of cash flows;
— leverage features;-

~— prepayment and extension terms;
— terms that limit the RSSB’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. hon-recourse loans); and
— features. that modify consideration of the time value .of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest

rates).

Equity instrumerits have contractual cash flows that do not mieet the -_SP.PI criterion. Accordingly; all such
financial assets are measured at FVTPL unless the FVOCT option is selected.

The Board’s classification of fihancial assets is summarized below

transaction and impairmert losses

| Business Model | Business Objective "Characteristics Prodacts
Hold to | Intent to originate financial | =  Providing financing and | Corporate
collect assets and hold them to originating assets to eamn. interest | bonds,
‘maturity, collecting the income as a primary income | Treasury
contfactual cash flows over streain. | bonds,
the term of the instrument | = Performing credit risk [ Treasury bills,
management activities commercial
» Costs include funding costs, | papers, loans

_and advances
to third parties,

.mortgage

loans, advances

to contractors,

dividend  and
other income

re¢eivable,.

other

deposits
finaneial _
institution  dand
Cash and bank-

assets,
with

‘balances, .

Hold to collect
and sell

Business objective met

through both hold te

collect and by
financial assets

selling

«  Portfolio held for liquidity needs;
or where a certain interest yield
profile i§ maintained;. or that are
normally rebalanced te achieve
matching of duration of assets and
liabilities.

* Income streams come from
interest income, fair value changes

None
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| Business Model | Business Objective Characteristics Products.
and impairment losses
Fair value | All other business | » -Assets held for trading | None
through profit-or | objectives, including | » Performance. of portfolio is
loss trading: and managing -evaluated on a fair vatue basis
fihancial assets on fair [ » Thcomeé streams are from fair
value basis value changes or trading gains and
losses
Fair  value | Objective is achieved by | = Hold the financial asset for the | None
through. other | both collecting contractual longerterm _
‘comprehensive | cash flows and selling | »  Itis notheld for irading
income financial assets.: »  An irrevocable election is made at
-ipitial acquisition
24
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

Reclassifications.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the
RSSB changes its-business model for managing financial assets.

ji) Derecognition

The RSSB-derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
RSSB neither transfers nor retains substantially all .of the risks and rewards of .ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of :a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the consideration

received (including any new asset obtained less any new lability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in profit-or loss.

Any cumulative gain or loss recognised in OCI in-tespect of equity investment securities designated as at
FVOCI is not recognised in.profit or loss on derecognition of such securities. Any interest in transferred
financial -assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the RSSB is recognised as a
separate asset or liability.

The RSSB enters into iransactions whereby it tratisfers assets recognised on its statement of financial
position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred asscts or a
portion of thern. In such cases; the transferred assets are not derecognised.

‘When assets are sold to a third party with a concurrent total return swap on the transferred assets, ‘the
transaction is accounted for as a secured financing transaction similar to sale-and-repurchase transactions,
because the RSSB retains all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of such assets.

Tn transactions in which the RSSB. neithet retains nor transfers substantially:all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the RSSB continues to. recoguise the
asset to the extent of its .continuing involvement, determined: by the extént to which it is exposed. to
changes in the value of the transferred asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STA TEMEN T8 (canﬁnued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

In certain transactions, the RSSB retains the obligation to sérvice the transferred financial asset for a fee.
The transferred asset is derecognised if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or liability is
recognised for ‘the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than adequate (asset) or is less than
adequate (liability) for performing the sérvicing.

Financial Liabilities

The RSSB derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire

iiiy Modifications of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets-

If the terms. of a financial asset are modified, then the RSSB evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different.

If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed. to have expired. Ini this case, the original financial asset is. derecognised (see
(iii)) and a new financial asset is fecognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any fees
received-as part of the modification are accounted for as follows:

— fees. that are co_ns_1dered. in determining the fair value of the new asset and fees that represent
teimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the asset; and.
— other fees are included in profit or loss as. part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficuities, then the objective of the

modification is usually to maximise recovery of the original coniractual terms rather than to originate a
new asset with substantially different terms. If the RSSB plans to modify a financial asset in a way that
‘would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset’ should be
writteri. off before the modification takes place. This approach impacts the. result of the quantitative
evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in such cases.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in
derecognition of the financial asset, then the RSSB- first recalculates the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset using the ongmal effective interest rate of the asset and recognises the resulting adjustment
as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. For ﬂoatlng-rate financial assets, the original effective
inteérest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is.adjusted to reflect current market terms at the
tifie of the modification. Any costs or fees incurred and modification. fees received adjust the. gross
carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortised over the rémaining termi of the modified
financial asset.

If such a modification is carried out because of fiiancial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain or loss.is

presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income ‘calculated

using the efféctive interest.tate method or management may elect to present it as a separate item on the

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income..
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial Instruments. (Continued)

Financial liabilities
The RSSB derecognises. a financial Tiability when ifs terms’ are modified, and the cash flows of the

. modified Hability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified

terms is recognised at. fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss. Consideration paid includes non-
financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities, including the new modified financial
liability. "

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised cost of
the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective interest rate and
the resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial liabilities, the original
effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted. to reflect current market
terms at the fime of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred are recognised as an adjustment to the
cairying amount of the liability and amortised over the remaining termn of the modified financial liability by
re-computing the effective interest rate on the instrument

Interest rate benchmark reform (policy applied from 1 J anuary 2028)

If the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of a financial asset or financial Hability measured at
amortised cost changes as a resitlt of interest rate benchmark reform, then the RSSB updates the effective
interest rate.of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the changethat is required by the reform. A
change. in the basis for determining the contractual cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if the following conditions are miet:

— changeis niecessary as a.direct consequence.of the reform; and _
-— the new basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically équivalent to. the previous
basis —i.¢. the basis immediately before the change.

If changes are made to & financial asset or financial 'liabil'i'ty"in addition to changes to the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows required by interest rate benchmark réform, then the RSSB first
updates the effective interest rate of the financial asset or financial liability to reflect the change that is

required by interest rate benchmark reform. After that, the RSSB applies the policies on accounting for

modifications set out above tothe additional changes.

iv) Oifsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented 'in the statement. of.
financial position-when, and only when, the RSSB cuirently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends cither to ‘settle them on a net basis or to realise the assét and settle the liability
simultaneotisty. '

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when permitted under IFRS Standards, or for gains
and losses arising from-a group of similar transactions such as in the RSSB’s trading activity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Sz_’gm_'ﬁcant’Accountirtgi Pglicies (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

v) Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ isthe price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the.measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the miost
advantageous market to which the RSSB has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its
tion-performance risk.

‘When one is available, the RSSB measures the fair value of an instriment using the: quoted price in an
active market for that instrumeni, A matket is regarded as “active’ if transactions for the asset or liability
take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide prieing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no quoted price.in an active market, then thie RSSB uses valuation techniques that maximise the

use of relevant observable inputs and miniimise the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation

technique incorporates all the factors that market. participants. would take. into account in pricing’ a
transaction,

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
ttansaction price —i.c. the fair value of the conside_r_atiox}. given or received. If thé RSSB determines that the
fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the. fair value is evidenced neither by

a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for

which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation to the difference, then the financial
instrument: is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair vidlue on
initial recognition and the transaction price. Subsequently, that difference is recognised in.profit.or loss on
an appropriate basis over the life of/ the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly
supported by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

Tf an asset or a liability measured 4t fair value has a bid price-and an ask-price, then the, RSSB measures
assets.and long positions at a bid price and liabilities arid short positiens at an ask price.

Portfolios of financial assets and. financial liabilities. that ‘are exposed to market risk and credit.risk that are

managed by the RSSB on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk are measured on the

basis of a price that would'be received toséll a net long position (or paid to transfer a net short position) for
the particular risk exposure. Portfolio-level adjustments ~ e.g. bid-ask adjustment or credit risk adjustments
that reflect the measurement on the basis of the net exposure — are allocated to the individual assets and

liabilities on the basis of the relative risk adjustment of each of the individual instruments in the portfolio.

The fair value of a financial Hability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is 16t less than the
~amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on - which the amount could be required to be

paid.
‘The R_SSB recognises transfers bétween levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.
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vi) Imipairment

The RSSB recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on the following: financial
instirumernts that are not measured at FVTPL:

— finiancial assets that are debt instruments;

—— lease receivables;
— financial guarantee contracts issued; and.
—  ‘mortgage loan commitments issued.

RSSB has recognized impairment loss on equity investments

The RSSB measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the following, for

which they.are measured as 12-month ECL;

— debt investment securities that are determined 1o have low credif risk at the reporting date; -and

— other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since-their initial
Tecognition,

The RSSB considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

12-month ECT. are the portion of lifétime ECL that result from default events ona finaneial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments: for which 12-month ECL
are recognised are referred to as “Stage 1 financial instruments’. Financial instruments allocated to Stage 1
have not undergone a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and are not credit-impaired.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument or the maximum coniractual period of exposure. Financial instruments. for which lifetime ECL
are recognised but that aré not éredit-impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 2 finaneial instruments’. Financial
instruments allocated to Stage 2 are those that have experiericed 4 significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but are not credit-impaired. Financial instruments for which lifetime ECL are recognised
and that are credit-impaired are referred to as “Stage 3 financial instruments’.

Measurement of ECL
ECL area probablhty—welghted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

— financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of- all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due 16 the entity in accordance with the contraet
and the cash flows that the RSSB expects to receive);

— financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

— undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows
that are due to the RSSB if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows.that the RSSB expects to
receive; and
— finanéial guarantée contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any amounts that the
"RSSB expects to recover.
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Restructured financial assets
If the terms of & financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced with a

new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whethier the financial
asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows.

If the expected restructuring will not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected cash
flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the

existing asset.

I the expected restructuring will result in derecognition of the existing: asset, then the expected fair value
of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the time of its
derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from the existing financial asset
that are discounted from the expected date. of derecognition to the reporting date using the original
effective interest rate of the existing financial asset

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the RSSB assesses whether financial assets: catried at amortised cost, debt financial
assets carried at EVOCI and finanice lease receivables are credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets’). A__ ﬁ__nancml asset is cred_tt -impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact.on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the- fell'OWin'g_' observable data:

— significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

— a breach of contract such as a-default or past-due event;

— the restructuring of a loan or advanée by the RSSB on termis that the RSSB-would not consider
otherwise;

~— it.is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey of other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappeararice of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A loan that has been renegotiated due to a detetioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to
be-credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced
‘significantly arid there are no-other indicators of impairment.

In making an assessment of whether an ‘investment in sovereign 'deB_t.-is' credit-itnpaired, the R'SSB'

considers the following factors.-

— The market’s assessmient of creditworthiness as reflected in bond yields.

— "The rating agencles assessments of creditworthiness.

— The country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance.

~— The probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through voluntary or
‘mandatory debt forgiveness. ' ' '

— The international support mechanisms in place. to provide the necessary ‘support as ‘lender of last
resort’ to that country, as well as the intention, reflected in public statéments, of governments and
agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the depth of those miechanisis: and,
irrespective of the political intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.
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Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL afe presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost: .as a deduction from the gross carrying amount- of the
assets;

— loan commitments and financial gnarantee contracts: generally, 45-a provision, and:

— where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the RSSB cannot
1dent1fy the ECL on the lean commitment component separately from those on the drawn component:
the RSSB presents a combined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented
as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the drawn component. Any excess. of the loss
allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as a provision.

" Write off

Mortgage loans and debt securities are written off (either partlally or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or.a portlon thereof. This is generally the case
when the RSSB- determines that the borrower does not hiave assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off, This assessment is carried out at the
individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previonsly written off are recogmscd when cash-is received and are included in
‘impairment losses on financial instruments’ in the statément of profit or'loss and OCL

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities 1in order to comply with
the RSSB’s procedures: for recovery of amounts due.

vii) Designation at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets .
On initial recognition; the RSSB has designated certain financial assets as at FVTPL because this
designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch, that would otherwisearise.

Equity instruments at FYOCI
Upon initial recognition, the RSSB occasionally elects to -classify irrevocably some of its equity
investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of definition of Equity under

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for traditig. Such classification is deterrined
on an instrurnent-by. ingtrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments ate never tecycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in

‘profit or loss as other operating income when the right of the payment has been established, except when

the RSSB benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the-instrument, in which case,
such gains are'recorded in OCL Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment:

The RSSB has not designated any financial liabilitiés as at FVTPL.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e} Equity Investments

Under IAS 27: Separate Financial Statements, when separate financial statements. are prepared, an entity
accounts for investments in subsidiaries, assotiates and joint ventures either at:

— Cost

— In aceordance with IFRS-9, or _

— Using the equity method described in TAS 32

As an-investment entity under IFRS 10, RSSB. is expected to measure and evaluate the performance of
substantially all of its. investments on a fair value basis. RSSB also elected to measure investments in.

associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or loss. Accordingly, all- eqmty investments are

accounted for on fair value basis. The classification for the respective investments have been done in

‘accordance with TFRS 9, The measurement of fair value was determined in accordance with IFRS 13: Fair

value measurement.

For the purpose-of these financial statements, the Board has measured all equity investments (except those
that are publicly listed and equity investments in' preference shares) using the net asset valuation method.
restricted to the shareholding of RSSB in the respective investments. The directors believe. that this basis of
valuation prowde_s the most relevant estimate of the worth of these investments.

) Property and equipment

Initial recognition and measurement

Property and equ:lpment is. initially recognised at cost. Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset: The cost of setf-constructed assets includes the cost of materials
and direct labour, any other costs directly - attiibutable t6 bringing the asset to a workmg condition for its
intended use, and the costs of dismantling and temoving the-items and restoring the site-on which they are
located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the. related equipment. is capitalised as
part of that equipment.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the carrying vahie of the.
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part -will flow to the Board and
its cost can be measured reliably. The-carrying value of the replaced part is de-recognised. The-cost of day
to-day servicing: of the property and equipment is recognized in the profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement

TAS 16 permits an accounting entity to choose the cost or revaluation model as its accountmg policy for
subsequent measurement of property and equipment. The accounting standard requires’ the -accounting
entity to apply the chosen model consistently across a class of property and equipment.

The Board has:chosen the revaluation model for the class of land and buildings and the cost model for.the
rest of the classes of property and equipment i.e. office equipment, motor vehicles, furniture and fittings,
computers, laboratory, and kitchen equipment.

— Revaluation model

Land and buildings are subsequently- measured at revalued amounts. It is the policy of the Board to revalue

assets nnder the class of land and buildings once in two years by internal valyation committee and once in

four years by an independent certitied valuer. Revalued ‘amounts of assets determined at revaluation are
compared to carrying values and are written statup or down to miatch revalued amounts. Accordingly, the
resultant, revaluation surplus or deficit is recognised as part of other comprehénsive income during the year
of revaluation and accumulated under :
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Property and equipment (Continued)

the revaluation reserve. Assets are then subsequernfly measured at revalued amounts less accumulated
depreciation until the riext revaluation or until de-recognition of the asset.

— Cost model

Other classes of assets” excluding land and building are meastired subsequently at cost less accurnulated
depreciation.

Depreciation expense

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of comprehensive inicome- and calculated to write off the
cost/revalued arnounts of the property and equipment on a straight line basis over'the expected useful lives
of the assets concerned. Land is not depreciated. The estimated depreciation rates for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Class | Depreciation rate.
Buildings | T ) TTTTTTTTTS%
Office equipment | : o ' T TT20%
Ty T
Computers o _ o o 50%
Kitchen equipment I ' | | 25%
- | Laboratory equipmiéent | | | B : TTTT25%

Management and directors review the depreciation methods, residual value and useful life-of an asset at the
year end and any change considered to be appropriate is recorded in surplus-or deficit as a change in
estimates.

Deirecognition

Assets are de-recognised through disposal at-sale or Board approved write off. Gains and losses on disposal
of an item of property and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the
catrying value of property and- equipment: and recognized net within other income in profit or loss. At
disposal of revalued assets, the revaluatiori surplus of revalued assets is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained earnings,

g) Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are imeasured on itiitial recognition at-cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less-any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Intanigible assets with finite lives are arnortised over the useful economic life and assessed. for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
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Intangible (Continued)

Amortisation _

The amortisation period -and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a firiite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern-of

~ consumption  of future. economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the

amortisation period or meﬂlo_d,__ as appropriate, and are freated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expeise on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of comprehensive

‘income in the: expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. There are no intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives. Infangible assets are amoriised at a rate of 50%.
De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from de~recognition of an intangible assef dre measured asthe difference between the

et disposal proceeds and ‘the carrying amount of the asset and are tecognised in theé staterhent of

comprehensive iricome when the asset-is derecognised.

h) Investment properties.
Initial recognition
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carfying amount

includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the
recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day gervicing of an investment property.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial .recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the. fair values of investment properties. are included in surplus or
deficit in the period in which they arise. Fair values are evaluated every after five years by an accredited
external, independent valuation expert, :

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have ‘been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future. econoniic benefit is expected from its disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amotmt -of the asset is recognised in
surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers. are-madé to or from investment property only when there is'a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owmer-occupied. property, the deemed cost for ‘subsequent. accounting is the fair
value.at the date.of change in use. When the use of property changes.from owner occupied to investment
property, the property is re-méasured at fair value and reclassified as investment property. Any gain arising
on revaluation is. recognized through other comprehensive income. Any loss arising on revaluation is
recognized through the surplus or deficit,

i) Tnventories-

Inventories are measured at the Tower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based on
fitst-in-first -out (FIFO) principle and includes the expenditure incurred in aéquiring the inventory, and
other costs incurred in bringing them to- their existing location and condition. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of ‘business, less the estimated cost of completion and ‘selling
expenses or the replacement cost as appropriate.
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j) Jmpairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Board’s non-financial assets other than investinent properties and inventories
-and are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such
condition exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated, and. an impairment loss recognised in surplus

ot -deficit whenever the catrying dmount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable

amount'is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not genetate cash inflows that are
largely indepéndent of those from other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount and impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the assets’ carrying amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation ot amortization if noimpairment loss was recognized.

k) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as 4 result of a past even, the Board has a present legal or.constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the-expected. future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current ruarket assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where the Board expects a provision to be reimbursed, for
example under an insurance contract, fhe réimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually céitain.

1) Tax

The Board is exempt from corporate income tax under Article 46 of law No.14/2018 of 13/04/2018.

Revenue, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax excepl:

— where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or rendering of services is not.recoverable
from. the taxation ‘authority, in which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the-expense item as applicable; and

— receivables and payables thai are stated with the amount of vaiue added tax included

The pet amount of value added tax recovera:b_le from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as
part of accounts receivables or account payables in the statement of financial position.

m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amortised cost subsequent to -initial r'eco_'gnitio_n. For the
purposes.of the statement of cash flows, cash and ‘cash equivalents comprises of cash and bank that are
available on demand as at the reporting date. '

n) Capital work-in-progress

The ongoing construction/installation of capital projects are recorded at the cost to date or valuation and
are only transferred into the relevant assets categories once completed and commissioned. No depreciation
is computed on capital work-in-progress:as these assets are not yet available for use. However, an expected
impaifment loss on capital work-in-progress is recognized immediately in surplus of deficit. Currently,
capital work in progress consists of Investment properties.under construction and IT modernisation project.
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o) Leases
RSSB has applied IFRS 16 — Leases on 1 July 2019 using the ;-qui_ﬁed retrospective approach. The
adoption of IFRS 16 did not have a significant impact on the RSSB’s financial statements.

‘Policy applicable from 1 July 2019

At inception of a contraci, RSSB assesses whether a contract is, or contains, :a lease. A contract is, or
comtains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use-of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Board uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16. This policy is applied to contracts.
entered into (or changed) on or after 1 July 2019,

RSSE acting as a lessee

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Board allocates.
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone price. The.
Board has elected. to separate noti-lease components and account for the lease and associated non-lease
components separately. The Board recognises ‘a right-of-use asset and & lease liability at the lease
commencement .date, The right-of-use asset is initially- measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted. for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismatritle and remove any improvements
made to branch office premises.

The right-of-use asset.is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value.of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Board’s iricremental borrowing rate, Generally, the Board uises its incremernital borrowing
rate as the. discount rate. The Board determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates
from various external finaricing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the tenms-of the lease and
type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

— fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend:on an index or 2 rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commiencement date: '

— amounts expected to be payable under-a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that' the Board is reasonably ceitain to exercise, lease
payments in‘an optional renewal period if the Board is reasonably certain to exercisé an extension
option, and penalties fof early termination of a lease unless the Board is reasonably. ceitain not to.
terminate eatly. ' -

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, if there is a change in the Board’s estimate of the amount expecied to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, if the Board changes its assessmient ‘of whether it will ‘exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the catrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced
to zero. The Board presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the'statement of financial position.
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Short-terni leases and leases of low-value assets

RSSB has élected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease labilities for leases of low-value assets and
short-term leases; The Board recoghnizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an.expense on a
straight-lirie basis over the lease term. All leases for RSSB-during the year ended 30 June 2021 were low
valye in nature.

p) Statufory reserves

The statutory reserves are set up under article 11 of law number 06/2003 of 22 March 2003 modifying and
completing law of 22/08/1974. The articlestipulates that the National Social Security Institutions provide
the following reserves for both the occupational hazards and pensions branches.

Pension’s branch statutory reserve

. This comprises the working capital and technical reserves as-explained below:

Working capital resérve is equivalent to a quarter of the total expenses of the pension’s branch previous
year. Technical reserve should not be lower than the total expenses of the. branch for the current three
years.

Occupational Hazards branch statutory reserve

This comprises the occupational hazards technical, security and working capital reserves as explained
below:

Technical reserve must be equal to the total amount of-_occupati_onal hazards paid during the year. Security
#eserve is ‘equal to a quarter of the expenses incurred during the last three years. Working capital reserve
should be equal 1o a quarter of the expenses of the previous year.

6. New standards or amendments and forthcoming requirements

i) New and currently effective requirements

The: following standards or amendments issued. by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

~ areeffective for accounting periods beginning on-or after 1 July 2022:

New amenidments or interpretation Effective for Board’s annual
periods beginning on or after
"Onerous Contracts [ July 2022
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 _ 1 July. 2022
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 1 July 2022
(Amendments o 1AS 16)
Reference 1o the Conceptual Framework (Amendments {o IFRS 3) 1 July 2022

The adoption of the above standards and amendments did. not have a significant effect on the results of the
Board.
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i) New and currently effective requirements

Onerous Contracts: Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to TAS 37)

Amendments to IAS ‘37 Provisions, Contingent I-iabilities and Contingenf Assets, issued by the

‘International Accounting Staridards' Board, clarify that the 'costs of fuifilling a contract’ when assessing,

whether a contract is onerous comprise both:

1 the incremental costs — e.g. direct labour and materials; and

2 an allocation of other direct casts - €.g. an allgcation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used.in fulfiling the contract.

The ameétidments apply for annual reporting periods. beginning on or afier 1 January 2022 to contracts

existing at the date when the-amendments are first applied. At the date of initial application, the cumulative
effect of applying the amendments will be recognised as an opening balance adjustment to retained
eatnings or otlier’ component of equity, as appropriate. The comparatives. will not. be- restated. Earlier
application is permitted.

The amendments did not have.a material inipact on the Board’s performance.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

= [FRS 1 First-time The amendment pernmits a subsidiary (as a first-time adopter of

Adoption of IFRS that -applies IFRS later than its parent) that applies IFRS.

Internatiofial Financial 1,D16(a) to measure cumulative translation differences using the

Reporting Standards amounts reported by its parent, based on-the parent’s date of
transition to IFRSs.

» IFRS 9 Financial The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of performing the **10

Instruments per cent test” for -derecognition of financial liabilities — in

determining those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower
includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, ‘including fees paid or received by either-the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf.

= IFRS 16 Leases The amendment removes ‘the illustration of payments from the
lessor relatmg to leasehold-improvements. As currently drafted, this
example is not clear as to why such payments are not a lease
incentive.

= JAS 41 Agriculture The amendment removes the requirement to exclude cash flows for
taxation when measuring fair value, thereby aligning the: fair value
measurement requirements il TAS 41 with those in IFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

i) New and currently effective requirements

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)

The amendment prohibits deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any

proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to.the location and cendition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intenided by management. Instead, an entity recognises the

~ proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

Proceeds frotii selling items before the related ifem of property, plant and equipment is available for use
should be recognised in profit or loss, together with the costs of producing those items. IAS.2 Inventories
should be applied in identifying and measuring these production costs.

The board will therefore need to distinguish between:

= costs associated with producing and selling items before the item of property, plant and equipment is
available for use; and

»  ¢osts associated with making the item of property, plant and equipment available for its intended use.
Making this allocation of costs may require significant estimatior and judgement,

The amendments apply for the aninial reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, with earlier
application permitted.. The amendments apply retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial

~ statements in which the company first applies the amendments.

The ddoption of these ameridments did not have a waterial impact on the financial statements of the
Board.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)

The amendiment has:
«  updated TFRS 3 so that it refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of the 1989 Framework;.

= added to IFRS 3 a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the scope of IAS 37 or
IFRIC 21, an acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 (instead of the Concéeptual Framework) to
identify the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination; and '

= added to IFRS"3-an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise continigent assets acquired
ini a business coinbination.

The amendment is effective for anrmal periods beginning on or after 1 July 2022. Early. application is

permitted if an entity also applies. all other updated references {published together with the updated

Conceptual Framework) at the same time or earlier.

The. adoption of these amendments did not have a material impact on the financial statements of the
Board. '
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'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

New standdrds or amendments and forthcoming requiresients (Continued)

i) New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of Rwanda: Social Security Board for the year ended

30.Jurie 2023, the following Standards and Interpretations were in issue but ot yet effective.

New aniendments or interpretation Fffective for the Board’s-
.annual periods beginning on
or after

_ IFRS 17 Insuratice Contracts and related amendments to IFRS 17 1 July 2023
Insurance Contracts.

— Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 July 2024
(Ameridments to IAS 1)

— Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Auvailable for optional
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendiments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 adoption/effective

' date deferred indefinitely
— Definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to [AS 8) 1 July 2024
-— Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to |AS 1 and 1-July 2024

IFRS Practice Statement 2)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (and its rélated amendments)

IFRS 17 supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts .and aims te increase comparability and transparency
about profitability. The new standard introduces'a néw comprehensive model (“general model™) for the
recognition and measurement of liabilities arising from insutance contracts. In- addition, it includes a
simplified approach and modifications-to the general measurement model that can be applied in certain
circumstances:and to specific contracts, such.as: :

= Reinsurance contracts held;

=  Direct participating contracts, arid

= Investment contracts with discretionary participation features..

Under the new standard, investment components are excluded from insurance revenue and service
expenses. Entities can also ¢hoosé to present the effect of changes in discount.rates and other financial
risks in profit or loss or OCL

The new standard includes various héw disclosures and requires additiondl granularity in disclosures to-
assist users to assess the effects of insurance contracts on the entity’s financial statements.

The entity is in the process of deterrining the impact of IFRS 17 and will provide more detailed.
disclosure on the impact in future financial statements. _

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on: or after 1 January 2023, Early adoption is.
permitted only if the entity applied IFRS 9.

The adoption of this standard and the related amendments is expected to- have a material impact on the

Board.

40



RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

_ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
Neiw standards or amendiments and forthcoming requivements (Continued)

- New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted (Continued)

Classification of labilities as current or pon-current (Amendments to JAS 1)

Under existing TAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least tweive months after the end of the
reporting period. As part of its amendments, the Board has removed .the requirement for a right to. be
unconditional and instead, now requirés that a right to defer settlement must have substance and exist at

the end of the reporting period.
There is limited guidance on how 1o déterminie whether a right has substance and the assessment may

require management to-exercise interpretive judgement.

The existing requirement to ignore manag"ement_’s' intentions or expectations for settling a liability when
determining its classification is unchanged.

The aimendments are to be applied retrospectively from the effective date.
The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The armendments are not expected to have a material impact oni the finaricial statements: of the Board..

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

The amendments require the full gain to be recognised when assets transferred between an investor and its
associate or joint venture meet the definition.of a *business’ under TFRS. 3 Business Combinations. Where
the assets iransferred do not meet the definition of a business, a ppartial gain to the extent of unrelated
investors® interests in the associate or joint venture is recognised. The definition of a business is key to
determining the extent of the gain to be recognised., '

The TASB has decided to defer the effective date for these amendments indefinitely. Early Adoption is still

pemmitted.

When a parent loses control of a subsidiary in a transaction with an associate or joint venture (JV), there is_
a conflict between the existing guidance on consolidation and equity accounting.

Under the consolidation standard, the parent recognises the full gain on the loss.of control. But under the
standard on associates and JVs, the parent recognises the gain only to-the extent of unrelated investors’
interests in the associate or JV. In either case, the loss is recoghised. in full if the underlying assets are
impaired.

Tn response to this conflict and the resultitig diversity in practice, on 11 September 20 14 the TASB- issued

Sale or Cont__ribi_ltiqn of Assets between an Investor and it§ Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28).

The Board continues to assess the likely impacts of these amendments. as they could potentially be

significant.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
New standards or ainendments and forthcoming requirements (Continued)

- New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but notyet adopted

Definition 'of kccouming estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

The amendments introduce a new definition for accounting estimates: clarifying that they are monetary
amounts in the financial statements that are stibject to measurement uncertainty.

“The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by
specifying that a company develops an accounting estimate t0° achieve the objective set.out by an

accounting policy.

‘Developing an accounting estimate includes both:

= Selecting a measurement technique (estimation or valuation technique) for exarnple: an estimation
‘technique used to-measure a loss-allowance for expected credit losses when applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments; and:

» Choosing the inptits to be used when-applying the chosen measurement technique for example: the
expected cash outflows for determining a provision for warranty obligations when applying IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

The effects of changes:im such inputs or measurement techniques are changes in accounting estimates.
The definition 6f accounting policies remains unchanged.

“The standard is effective for annual périods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
“The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Board.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendmerits to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)

In October 2018, the Board refined its definition of material to. make it easier to understand and apply. This
definition is now aligned across IFRS Staridards and the Conceptual Framework.

“Information is material if omitting, misstating or ebscuriiig it could reas‘onab{y be expected to infliuence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those
Sfinancial statements, which provideé financial information about a specy‘ic reporting entity.’

The refined definition of material complements the non-mandatory IFRS Practice Statement 2 guidance the
Board issued in 2017, which Sutlines a four-step process ( summarised as identify, assess, organise and
review) that preparers can use to help them make materiality judgenients and provides guidance and
examples on how to make materiality judgements in preparing their financial statements.

‘The Board has recently issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and an-update to

IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Maieriality Judgements 1o help companies provide useful accounting
policy disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) o
New standards or amendments and forthconting requirements (Continued)

New and amended standards-and interpretations in issue but not yet adopted

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to L4S 1.and IFRS Practice Statement 2) Continned
The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

e requiring.companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies;

e clarifyingthat accounting policies reélatedto immaterial transactions, other events or conditions.
aré themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and

o clarifying that not ali accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or
conditions.are themselves material to a company’s financial statements.

The Board also amended TFRS Practice Statement 2 10 include guidance and two additional exampies on
the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments are consistent with the refined definition of material:

“Accounting policy information is material if; when considered fogether with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably- be expected to-influence decisions that the priinary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis. of those financial statements”,

The amendments are effective from 1 January 2023 but may be applied earlier. The amendments are not
expected to have material effect on the financial statements and related disclosures of the Board.

RSSB has not early adopted these standards. All standards and Interpretations will be adopted at their
effective.date (except for those standards and Interpretations that are not applicable to the entity). The
adoption of these amendments are niot expected‘to have a material impact on the financial statements of the

Board.

7. Determination of fair value
i) Fairvalue measurement

Fair values of cash and deposits with commercial banks, trade receivables, loans and advances and other
payables reasonably approximate their carrying amounts. largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments and/or because they carry interest rates that reasonably approximate-to market rates.

The: carrying amnounts of equii_iy securities held for trading and at fair valite through profit of loss are the
same-as their fair valuies since the instriments are presented at fair value.

ii) Valuation hierarchy

IFRS 13 requires a three-tiered disclosure for all financial assets and financial liabilities that are carried in
the books of entities at fair value. This fair value disclosure is divided into three levels as folows:
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NOTES TOQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Determination of fair value (Continued)

Valuation Framework {(Contiriued)

Level 1 — quoted. prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities e.g. quoted equity
securities.

Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices i’nc':luded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability
either diréctly (e.g. prices) or indirectly (e.g. derived from prices).

Level 3 — inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data. These items are not
Level 1 products and contain at least one significant input parameter which could not be price tested from

any of the methods described for Level 2 produets. Examples ar¢ products where correlation is a significant
input parameter anid products where there is severe illiquidity in the markets for a prolonged period of time.

. a) Valuation models

The Board measures fair values using their fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of inputs
wsed in making the measurements.

Level 1 —inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instruments,

Level 2 — iriputs other than quoted market prices included within level 1that are observable-either directly
(llkc pnces) or indirectly (derived prices). This category includes instruménts valved using: quoted market
prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
matkets that are considered: less active; or other valuation techniques-in which all significant inputs are
directly ot indirectly obscrvable from market data.

b) Valuation Framework
The Board has éstablished clear puidelines on how fair value is to be determined for all assets and
liabilities measured at fair value. These guidelines afe included i in the board’s operational manuals; The:

fair value of both ﬁnanmah’non—ﬁnanmal assets and fair values have been determined for measuremént
and/or disclosure purposes based on themethods below:

(i) Investment properties and Administrative land and buildings

The Board uses an external. mdependent valuation. company with recognized professional qualification
experience and valués the Board’s investment propeities after every five years (previously on an annual
basis). The fair values are based on the market conditions being the price that would be received to sell an
asset.in an ordﬁrly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. In the abserice of an
active price in an active market; the values are prepared by using three methods of valuation — the direct
comparison method, the replacemerit cost method-and income capltahsatlon method.

a) The direct comparison method: Under this method, the estimated market value of the asset is related
to value of a known comparable property whereby the latter’s value is taken to be the bestprice that
can be obtained by the property being valued with due -allowance being made for value affecting
differences such as: location, level and amount of services provided, accessibility, size, cyclical
patterns in the local and regional property markets, development conditions discemed from land titles,
date of transaction, condition {in case of buildings), sales data, tenure and unexpired term,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT. S (Continued)
Determination of fair value (Continued) .
Valuation Framework (Continued)

"" b) The replacement cost method: This method is a methed of last resort in the-event of the absence of an

"' active market or related market (under the direct comparisonr method). Under this method, the

: estimated: value of the property is made in relation to what it will cost to acquire the asset.at current
""-' price. The basic premise/assumption being that no prudent investor would pay for an asset on offer
more than it would cost to acquire the asset new by undertaking property -dex‘t‘elqpment. ‘The valuation
is thus based on the current cost of constructing a similar building capable of performing the same
—_ function as the asset being valued. Since the subject.asset’s life will have been relatively consumexd
with its age, then the cost estiniate is theri adjusted 1o reflect the consumed life. This method was
applied in determining value for seme investment properties. and administrative buildirigs classified
undér the property and equipment class — land and buildings. This class of property and equipment is

accounted for using the revaluation. model in accordance: with the requirements of IAS 16: Property,
Plant and Equipment.
- ¢) Investment method/ Income Capitalization method: ‘This ‘method ‘estimates market value of the

property-based income earned from the ‘ptoperty. The value -of the property under this method is
-determined by how much rental income: the property generates. The market value of each property 18
— determined by considering the annual market rent income of the property and an estimated
multiplier/capitalisation factor (referred to as years purchase, YP). The capitalisation rate and
multiplier are determined by the valuation experts based on the market for similar property. This
metliod was applied in determining value for some investinent properties.
(ii) Valuation of Land
The valuation for.Jand was based on estimated land prices for specific locations across the country and
value was determined by muiltiplying the land. size with the ‘estimated price per square metre: The
estimated value-of land forms part.of the estimated fair value for investment properties and property,
plant and equipment:
(iif) Investment in debt and equity securities
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments and
-~ available- for sale-is deterriiined by reference to theit quoted bid price at the reporting date if available.
; The fair value for non-quoted equity instruments has been determined using the net asset value
methodology and the fair value of held to maturity investments is determined using the discounted cash
- flow methodology.
" (i) Trade and other receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future ‘¢ash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The fair value of trade and other receivables
is determined at initial recogrition.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (Continned)

Determination of fuir value (Continued)
c) Assets measured at fair value

As at 30 June 2023

The table below shows the assets measured at fair value and their relevant fair hietarchy.

Level 1 Level 2 Amiount not Total as per

measured at statement of

fair value financial
position
Frw'millions: Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw!’millio_ns :

Property and. equipment - 12,923 2,032 14,955
Investment properties. - . 230,118 - 230,118
Equity investments 194,336 352,432 63,746 610,514
Total 194,336 595,473 65,778 855,587
As at 30 June 2022

‘Level 1 Level 2 Amount not . Total as per

measured at statement of

fair value financial

position

Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions. Frw!'millions

Property and equipment - 13,534 366 14,400
Investient properties . 227,604 - 227,604
Equity investments 175,449 306,183 62,266 543,897
Teotal 175,449 547,321 63,132 785,901
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Determination offair value (Continued)

d) Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

The tables below sets out the carrying values of financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value:

30 June 2023

Schemes

Financial assets
Corporate Bond

Treasury bonds

Treasuty bills

Commercial papers

Loan and adyances to third parties

Mortgage loans

_Advances to contrastors.

Dividenil reccivable

{Other assets

- Due from/(Due to) other schemes

Deposits with financial institittions
Cash and barik balances

TFotal

Financial liabilities
Amounts.retained on comnstruction

contracts

Benefits payable.

‘Other payables

Teotal

Penslon. Medical CBHL M“‘“{c‘::,ye  EioHen Total
Frw'milllons Frw'inillions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions  Eew'millions
58,158 15671 73,829
315,403 129,339 Q 32,357 41,587 ‘518,686
9,568 32,434 19,711 2356 0 64,070
57,938 57,938
3,825 26,111 0 29,036,
12 . 32
3,370 30 3400
12,356 1,067 0 0 13,423
6910 254 14.955 19 22,138
(6,294) 6,533, 27y (232) 0
117,007 134,757 ] 12,395 3,941 268,100
68,497 43,195: 9,200 5,158 1,515 127,365
646,769 389,410 43,840, 52,053 47,043 1,179,115,
2,452 69 4 0 0 2526
© 14,334 - 32,646 .91 - 37271
2,080 593 13,375 211 202 16,860
4,532 15396 36,025 502 202 56,657
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30 June 2022

Schemes

Financial assets held at
amortised cost

Corporate Bond
Trcasury bonds

Treasuty bills

Commercial papers
Loan.and advances o third
parties

Mortgage loans
Advanées to contractors
Dividend receivable
Other assets

Dug from / {Due.to) other
schemes.

Deposits with financial
institutions

‘Cash and bank balances
Total

Financial liabilities
‘elassified .as other
liabilities

Amounts retained-on-
construction-confracts
Benefits payable.

Other payables

Total

- - - Maternity N— \
Pension Medical CBHI1 leave Ejo.Heza. Total

Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'milliois Frw'millions Frw'millions  Frw'millions
57,699 - - - - 57,699
191,771 58,763 6,832 27775 285,141
22,383 38,046 - 1,970 . 62,399
29,751 - - - - 29,7510
5,140 28,795 - - - 33,935
11 " B - - - 11
6,355 30 - - - 6,385
8,649 222 - - - 8,870
3,521 272 6,270 20 - 10,083
(1,116) 872 (34 278 - -
121,948 131,318 - 23,260 2,611 279,136
105,474 73,211 16,497 6,732 1,235 203,149
551,586 331,526 22,734 39,003 31,621 976,560
1,387 63 3 - - 1,453

- 9,306 19,440 368 - 29,204

2,858 1,055 15,761 102 145 19,920
4,244 10,514 35,205 470 145 50,577
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENIS (Continued)

The table below sets out the fair values of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

30 Jun¢ 2023
Schemes. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tnml‘,g?;; C:::::lgt
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frwmillions Friw'millions Frw'millions
Financial asséts.
Corporate. Bond 73,829 73,829 73,829
Treasury bonds - 518,686 - 518,686 518,686
Treasury bilis . 64,070 - 64,070 64,070
Commercial papers. - 57,938 - 57,938 57.938
T.oan and advances to third parties - 29,936 . 29,936 29,936
Mortgage loans - 32 . 32 32
Advances to contractors - 3,400 - 3,400 3,400
Dividend receivible - 13,423 - 13,423 13,423
Othicr assets - 22,138 - 22,138 22,138
‘Due from / (Due'to) other schemes - 0 - 0 0
Deposits with financial institutions: : 268,100 - 268,100 268,100
‘Cash and bank balances - 127,565 - 127,565 127,565
Total 0 1,179,115 0 1,179,115 1,179,115
Financial liabilities
Amounts retained on construction contracts - 2,526 - 2526 2-?_526
Benefits payable - 37,271 - 37,271 37,271
Other:payables - 16,360 - 16,860 16,860
Total ] 56,657 0 56,657 56,657
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30 June 2022
‘Schemes. Le?\_réI_ 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tdm__l‘:?:: 'C:::gl':gt
Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions

Financial assets

Corporate Bond . 57,699 - 57,699 57,609
Treasury bonds -. 285,141 - 285,141 '28'5,__1'4}_[
Treasury bills - 62,399 - 62,399 62,399
Commercial papers - 29,751 - 29,757 29,751
Loan and advances to third parties - 33,935 - 33,935 33,935
Mortgage loans - 1 - 1 11
Advances to:éohtractors - 6,385 - 6,385 6,385
Dividend receivable - 8,870 - 8,870 8,870
Other- assets - 10,083, - 10,083 10,083
_Due from / {Dug+to) other scheimes’ - - - - -
‘Deposits with financial institutions - 279,136 . - 279,136 279,136
Cash and bank balances - 203,149 - 203,149 303,149
Total - 976,559 - 976,559 976,559
Financial liabilities
Amounts retained on construction _

contracts - 1,453 - 1.453 1,453
‘Bencfits payable - 29,204 - 29204 29,204
Other payables - 19,920 - 19,920 19,920
Total - 50,577 - 50,577 50,577
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

8. Operating segnients

8.1. Basis for Segmentation

Rwanda Social Security Board has the following five schemes as shown:

Reportable segments Operations
Pension.and Occupational hazard | Contributions from employers and employeesin Rwanda and
_ _ prqwde_s benefits to pensioners, invalids and- oth_er beneficiaries
Meédical Provides medical insurance services,
Community Based Health. | Provides coMurﬁty-based health i.nsurance scheme
Initiative
Materhity ' Provides matermty leave insurance services
Long term savings scheme (Ejo "Asmstmg the public to accumulate savings fora djcrmﬁed and
Heza) _secure retirement. Ejo-Fleza is an inclusive scheme which targets
both salaried and non-salaried workers-

Although the schemes are overseen by the same mianagement téam, they have different objéctives and are
‘managed separately within the Board’s management and internal reporting structure.

8.2. Contribution to performance

The below table shows key scheme ratios.to RSSB as an entity.

2022/2023 - Pension Medical CBHI Maternity | Ejo Heza
Conmbutlons 44% 25% 1 25% 3% 3%
Benefits Paid 27.43% 3028% | 41.06% | 1.07% 017%
Investment income 59.2% 22.1% o 11% 3.7% 3.9%
Assets % 1 23% 1 2% 3% 2%
2021/2022 . Pension Medical | CBHI | Maternity Ejo Heza
Confributions N . . A4% ) 23% B . '25% 304 . 5%
Benefits Paid - . 28.76% 2557% | 4447% |  116% 0.04%
Investment income 632% | 317% | 05% 30% 1.8%
Assets. 2% 23% 1% 2% 2%
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contintied)

9, Contributions

Sub-Note 2023 2022

Frw'millions Frw'millions

Pengion scheme 10.1 153,240 125,758
‘Medical scheme 102 86,249 65,878
Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI} scheme. i0.3 §5,654 70,413,
Maternity leave scheme 10.4 11,336 9,242
Ejo Heza 10.5 11,120 13,152
347,509 284,444

bR Wb

9.1, Contributions — Pension scheme-

In accordance with Law. No 45/2010. concerning the responsibilities, -organization -and functioning of the
Rwanda Social Security Board, pension contributions are determined at 8% of an employee’s gross salary
{exclusive of transport allowance), of which 5% is paid by the employer and 3% is paid by the employee. Of the

-amounts paid by the employer, 2% relates' to employee occupational hazards while 3% goes towards the

employee’s pension.

2023 2022
Frw'miltions Frw'millions’
“Pension And Occupational Hazard Contributions _ 142,386 117,726
Pension And Occu.pﬂﬁona] Hazard Contribution Penalties 9,523 7,326
Penisian and Oceupational Hazard-Contribution arrears 831 707
' 153,240 125,758

9.2. Contributions — Medical schemé

In accordance with Law, No 45/2010 concerning the responsibilities, organization and functlomng of the.
Rwanda Social Security Board, both employee and emiployer medical contributions are deterfnined at 7.5% of an

individual’s basic salary.

2023 2022

Frw'miliions Frw'millions

Public médical ‘contributions 68,483 ‘51,616
Private medical contributions 16,634 13,310
Pensioners:medical-contributions 1,132 952
36,249 65,878

9,3, Contributions — CBHI scheme

In accordance with Article 2 of the Prime Minister’s order No,034/01 of 13/01/2020 related to the Community-
Based Health Insurance Scheme contributions, ccontributors to community-based health insurance are the
followmg

The Government,

Employees in State organs-and thoese in private sector.

Entities providing health insurance services operating in Rwanda.

Telecommunication companies.

Petrol and gas oil trade companies.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 ._IUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

CRHI contributions received by RSSB during the year were as follows:

Government contributions.
Members CGn'nibuﬁons :
insurance coniribution
Employees contributions
Teleécommunication contribution

"Peirol and gas oil contributions

‘CBHI Contribution Partners
Other-CBHI Subsidies:
Contributions ~ RDB
‘Contributions - RNEC.

2023 2022
Frw'millions: Frw'millions
11,853 12,355
29,070, 26,607
11,672 9,098
7,381 6,309
8,055 6,451
12,670: ‘5,768
) 0
4,552 3.619
336 86
126, 121
85,654 70,413

*Amounit for-partner contribution from Imbuto Foundation has been reclassified to other income as grants.

During the year the Prime minister’s order No.034/01 of [3/01/2020 introduced new sources. of CBHI
contribution income which. include Employees, Telecommunication companies, Patrol and Gas cil and other

CBHI subsidies.
9.4. Contributions — Maternity leave scheme

Pursuant to Law N° 003/2016 of 30/03/2016 establishing and govermng materiiity leave benefits scheme. The
contrtbutlon for maternity leave benefits is equal to zero-point six percent (0.6%) of the salary to which the
‘contributionis subscribed. The employer and the employee each contribute zero-point three percent (0.3%) of

the salaty to which the contribution 1§ subscribed.

Ccmtributions -Public sector

Contributions -Private sector

9.5, Contributions/Savings — Ejo Heza

Members pontﬂbutionsisaving_s
Government contributions to member savings

2023 2021

Frw'millions Frw'millions.

5,003 3,949

6,333 5,294

11,336 9,242
2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
11,120 11,446
0 1,706
11,120 13,152
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD o
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. Benefits paid

Pension scheme

Medical scheme

Community Based Health Insurance (CBHI) scheme:
Maternity leave scheme

‘Ejo Hezd scheme

Sub-Note
10.1
10.2
10,4

10.1. Benefits paid - Pension and Occupational hazards scheme

Benefits paid to penisioners
Benefits paid to. deceased meémbers’ beneficiaries
Sub-total benefits paid

‘Incapacity benefits-

Other occupational hazards
Subtotal - Occupational hazard paid
‘Total benefits paid

10.2. Benefits paid — Medical scheme

Acts miedical from partner hospitals, health centres and clinics.

Partners pharmacy costs

10.3.  Benefits paid — CBHI scheme

CBHI medicine
CBHI medical acts

10.4. Benefits expense - Maternity léave Scheme
Maternit_y leave benefits
_10.5; _Beneﬁts"expenée_ — Ejo Heza Scheme

Benefits

2023 2022

Frw'millions ‘Frw'millions

45,854 41,292

50,627 36,712

68,651 63,855

1,788 1,662

277 62

167,197 143,583

2023 2022

Frw'millions Frw'millions

36,166, 31,540

8,209 8,419

44,376 39,959

469 437

1,009 896

1,479 1,333

45,834 41,292

2023 2022

Frw'millions  Frw'millions

32,332 26,367

18,295 10,345

50,627 36,712

2023 2022

Frw'millions Frw'millions

26,707 23,946

41,944 39,909
68,651 03,8585

2023 2022

Frw'millions:  Frw'millions

1,788 1,662

1,788 1,662

2023 2022

Frw 'millions Fry 'millions

297 a2

277 62
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE.2023.

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

‘25, Intangible assets

Medical _ Maternity o o
AS at 30 Tune- 2023 Pension Scheme Scheme CBHI Leave Ejo Heza Total
Frw'millions Fri'millions.  Frw'millioes Frw'milliohs.  Fro'millions.  Few'millions
Cost
Atstart of year 2,141 833 22 1i 365 3,572
Adjustment {Reclassification of
Ishema to WIF) - - B .
Disposal - - - -
-Additions - - - -
2,141 833 222 1 365 3,572
Amortization
At start of year (627) {832) {215} {n (109) {1,758)
-Adjustment to openitig balances - - - -
Disposal - . - -
‘Charge forthe year { {1i (2) ()] (36) 41
(629) (#33) (221) D (146} (1,840}
Closing net book value 1512 1 1 0 219 1,732
. . . Medical ) Maternicy o
As at 30 June 2022 Pension Scheme Scheme CRHI Leave ‘Ejo Heza ‘Total
Frv'millions Frw'milliens Frw'millions Frw'millions Frw'millions: Erw"millions:
Cost
At start 6f year 3.200 831 218 10 365 4,624
Disposal’ {1,061} 0 o o 0 (1,061}
Additions. 3 3 3 0 0 9
2,141 833 222 11 365 3572
Arhortization
At start of year {627} (831} {218) _('l 0y {(73) a 739)
Adjustment to opening balances - - -
‘Disposal - - -
Charge forthe year (1) (n i {0y {36 39)°
627 (832) (219} 1y (109 (1,798)
Closing net book value. 1,514 2 2 [V 255 1,774

The contract for IT modernisaticn project eliapsed before completion of the projéct and RSSB took a decision fiot

10 renew the contract. An impairment has been made for estimate of deliverables. that will not be utilised by
RSSB after the elapse-of the contract. There is an ongoing legal process that will result. in the determination of
final value and obligations for both parties and this process was still ongoing at reporting date.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuéd)

26. lInvestment properties

Scheme Carrying values
Closing net book value 2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Pensicn Scheme 26.1 217,588 215,075
Medical S¢hemie 26.2 12,530 12,530
Total ' 230,118 227,604

In 2022, RSSB’s investment. properties-and administrative land and buildings (classified under property and.
equipment —note 23) were subject to valuation by Eng, NSHIZIRUNGU Viricent an' independent professzonal
valuer. Valuation methods used were the Direct comparison, Replacement cost methods and the income
capitalization method. During: the year ending 30 June 2023 Land and Buildings were hot revalued.

Vaiuation.of Land

‘The valuation for land was based on-estimated land prices forspecific.locations across the country and vaiue-was

determined by multiplying the land size with the- estimated ‘price per-square metre. The estiated value of land,
forms part of the estimated fair value for investment properties and property, plant arid équipment, The last
valuation was based on 2021 land reference prices published by the lnstitute of Real Property valuers in Rwanda.
These reference prices had not been revised by 30 June 2023. Directors believe the 2021 reference.prices provide
reasonable estimate of the land value-as at 30 J une 2023

Where the direct comparison method was used to. determine property-valugs, the properties have beenrecorded at
theit Open Market values which is the highest price in terms of money which the property under appraisal should
or could fetch in 4 competitive-and open market under conditions requisite for a fairsale.

Implicit in this definition is-the consummation of a sale at-specified date and the passing of ownership from seller

to-buyer under the following conditions:

1. Both the buyet arid seller aie economically motivated and are both acting prudently

2. The sale price is not affected by any undue influence.

3. l_30'th 'p'arties;- are well informed and well advised and are acting in what they consider to-be their own. best
interest

4. A reasonable time is.allowed for exposure in the open matket value

The valuer has assumed that the propéity is not affected by statutofy notices and nieither the property nor its use
gives rise to ‘contravention of any statutory requirements. The Valuer did not inspect any woodwork or other
parts of the structure that were covered, inaccessible or unexposed.

The open market values for the lands for development in urban and rural areas was obtained using the
comparison valuation method and international valuation standards.

Where replacement cost method was used to determine property values, the cost.of construction was recognized
at 1,500 USD per square meter (at an exchange rate of Frw 1 ,015:U8$1) by analyzing the different costs of
building similar modetrn. commiercial properties completed in the last 3 years.
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'RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY ROARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.JUNE 2023

NOTES'TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contiried)

As per the valuation report, total valuations of RSSB properties are-as follows:

Valuation as at

‘30 June 2022

{Frw)

Open market 236,445,501,000
Insurance value (excludes land) '84,233,482,000

'RSSB management adopted the open market values for the propemes in 2022. Management and Directors liave

assessed the potential changes to the values dnd considered that the values held in the books of account best
represent the value of the properties as at 30-June 2023. Any. changes would nieither be significant nor materidl to
the financial statements given the prevailing economic conditions.

26.1. Reconciliation of movement.in Invesiment properties during the year - Pension Scheme

At 30 June 2023
Property description Asat 1 July 2023, Adjustmént _ Ad jusi'mmt Teansfer Fair Additions Bispodaly Aiat3o
: “fo opening €0 opening from valuation’ June 2023
balance Lalance pmpcrt;r _gainf{loss)
_cqu?::lq!
. .-“’ S
invesIment
properiy:
Frwndilions  Frwmillions  Fro'millions.  Fiw'millions  Fiw'milligs  Fre'mittions  Fro'milllons Frwv'miltiona
KACYIRU EXECUTIVE APARTMENTS 7.762 " ) o & v v 7762
GRAND BENSION PLAZZA. 24 396 " " 0 ¢ B 0 24,890
MUSANZE PENSION ELAZZA 3089 0 v o o it i 089
RWAMAGANA PENSION FLAZZA 3,755 [0 s i ] i ! 3785
NYANZA PENSION PLAZZA 4131 I @ i o t i 4,131
KARONGH PENSION PLAZZA 3804 0 [ 4 ] il 0 3804
‘RESIDENTIAL HOUSEKIYOVLT 537 i ] B o b 0 531
NYAGATARE HOUSES I 0 (i i o o 0 62
LAND FOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 175 i I i 1 o n 175
LAND FOR INSURANCE PLAZZAS 1t L] i o L3 o 1] :[l-
FORMER CECFR-BLOT 1382 i X0 u ir o a § 782
GACHLIRO VISION CITY LAND 34912 o ¥ 4 [ ] {1,077 33,845
‘CBRI:RUGENGE LAND 1202 [0 [T} I ¥ i by 20
KINYINYA LAND 37087 [} [ 1] h ] {5,R785 32104
BATSINDA PARCE). Lo 0 [ o [ i i3 LAY
NYAGATARE LAND %4 W " 4 i B @ 7
RWAMAGANA PARCEL J&1. 1,924 " 0 n o (] 0 128,
NYANZA FLOT A% " [ o 0 i o 478
RUDAVLUPLOT 2%t it 0 [] i It u 2u
'LAND FROM GPIY 1522 6 n. ] o o 4 1322
BATSINDA FIPELINE INVESTMENT 32 I i [ i o o iz
‘GISOZ| PLOT @ i : 0 1 0 o n it
KIGALI GOLF CLUB LAND 17.762 it a I 6 9336 o 27,208
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Proicrly deseription

RUSORORO PLOTS .

NY ARUGENGE PLOTS -

MATRRIEL DES MAISONS DHABITATION
MATERIELS DEKEA

- GROUPES ELECTROGENES DE'KEA

AECENSEURS DE KEA-

CRYSTAL PLAZA BUILDING
“NYARUTARAMA PENSION PLAZA

MOBILIER DES MAISONS D' HABITATION
MORILIERS DEKEA:

Auon_Amén. Flacerin|

ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT FOR ALL PLAZZAS

GASOGLLAND

At:30 June 2022

Pruperty description

KACYIRU EXECUTIVE APARTMENTS
GRAND PENSION PLAZZA
MUSANZE PENSION PLAZZA
RWAMAGANA PENSION PLATZA
NYANZA PENSION FLAZZA

KARONGI BENSION PLAZZ A

- RESIDENTIAL'HOUSE KIYOVU

NYAGATARE HOUSES

LANIYFOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
LAND FOR INSURANCE PLAZZAS.
FORMER CECFR PLOT

GACULIRO VISION CITY LAND.
CRDI-RUGENGE LAND-

KINVINYA LAND

BATSINDA PARCEL

NYAGATARE LAND

RWADMAGANA PARCEL 18T

-NYANZA PLOT

RUBAVU.FLOT

At 1 July 2022 a\&_}l_ls[l_l!e'lli- Adjuslment Transfer Fa:ir_ Additions, Dispnsﬂs As at 30
1o opening {0 Opening fram valualion June 2023
balanie Halance property painf{loss)
ELL )
-eyuipmenl
[[:]
‘investment.
praperty
B AN D, 1 i o 0 o 4
1,637 @ 'y 0 N ) (6 1572
1 [ i [ o 1] i 1
03 0 - i ¢ i 4 233
n a W o i o @ 0
o i e i i i B §]
il i t [ o 0 a I
17051 n 13 ] ¥ I8 i 1740088
4 b w o o i it A
572 [ . @ [} [ 4 512
o 0 i v t [E i o
¥ n n i} n i L] LI
B854 i 4 il . u ] [
215,075 2. 0 0 0 3836 (7.022) 217,588
Ast 1.July 200t Adjust Adjustimen Transfey Fair’ Additions . Disposals Asal 30
‘(o' opening . tw'vpening Trodi “valuaticn June 2012
balance balance property ‘galiniiloss)
{refunil {rélated to and
Rusaror propriation- nip
‘plots) clafm 1z
Gaculiro.. Investmeny
ision gty preperty
.Land - plat)
Frw'milliens  Frw'millions Frwmillions. Frw'millions  Erw'milions  Fre'millions Frw'miilii:_ns Frov'millions.
7713 ) o 180 {L201) 1 W e (]
14049 i f 1627 1780 i i 24,856
4,319 t v 779 {209} i o Sy
3403 1 n 320 pors i 0 3743
2420 I 0 ™ i n. i 4,131
343 B vl 461 .‘;‘-9'5-} o U 3.8
224 W 0 256 57 n [ 537
A3 i |t} ] . [t} 0 a2
1,753 [ n (VLT 20 i [} 175
1,941) it 0 (Lp0t) u n o t
LI143 3 N [ 139 kil [ 1382
sEALE i o " L1854 158 131) 54422
LS n ) 0 15% o 0 300
4,384 @ B i Ay i " 37,967
7,233 “ o o 2539 u @ 0172
&0 i i i ) Bil i Fan
3036 [ ¢ i} {1,308 o U 1,928
5560 + R [ () o o it
2
st 1 o 0 16 f ] 254
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Asat1July 2021 Adjustment Adjustment Transfer ¥air Adlditiogs Disposals - As dt 30
10 cpening 1o opéning from . “valuation Jiine 2022
balaezee .. balance properyy -gainf{luss}
{refund (related 1o .and
Ruorors  Expropriaiion ) egquipm
plols} claim . ’ to”
Gaculiva investment
vislor Gty property
land - plat}
Property d!s«'_ripl':inn' .
LAND FROM GPD. 1.552 a it L] a5y A, ] §322.
BATSINDA FIFELINE TNV ESTMENT 4t X0 o il It [} il 32
GISOZi PLOT L i g, u v 0 (1550} B
KIGAL GOL.F CLUB LAND iy L EH @ Tl 2,544 4 162
RUSORORQ PLOTS 11,020 v " i {3.520) 1 o B0
NY ARUGENGE PLOTS 1264 v o v 313 0" o 1637
MATERIEL DES MAISONS IPHABITATION ! o o u i it 0 1
MATERIELS DE KEA. 55 q o o it o e 333
GROUPES ELECTROGENES DE KEA 170 i ¢ (my o W u Y
ASCENSEURS DE KEA 193 d it (108} " N o I
CRYSTAL PLAZA BUILOING 2,503 u Rl o i U 2.508) B
Nmm,-'mmm.rsns@x FLAZA 16314 ¢ i+ i ] 4 o AT,081
MOBILIER DES MAISONS D HABITATION -+ Y o o ﬂ A 0 4
- MOBILIERS DE KEA F12 u w f n i 0 b2y
' Agén Amdn (Placemzni m n b i) o " o o
ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT FOR ALL PLAZZAS 2165 i 0 2163 o i o 0,
- GASOGI LAND 3258 o ﬂ: o 5611 ", i 8865
203,855 L] 1] 0 '-T.SB 3001 . f4v'l‘48‘]' 215075
= — — . ——1
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_RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continned)

27. Investment properties in the process of construction

Scheme Sub-Note Carrying values
2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Pension Scheme 27.1 22 668 12,031
Medical Scheme 27.2 0 0
Total 22,668 12,031

27.1.  Investment properties under constriction — pension scheme

30 June 2023
Property descrijition At T July Prior year  Additions Reckissificati At 30 June
2022 adjustment on to other 2023
assels
Frw'million Frw'millio ]
5 Frw'millions ns  Frw'millions.  Fiw'millions-
.LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT- 0. 0 0 0 ¢
LOGEMENTS BATSINDA Zeme PHASE. 12,031 0 10,638 0 22,668
Investment in"CATCHUP INVESTMENTS [\
LIMITED 0 [ 0 0.
12,031 0 10,638 0 22,668
30 June 2022
“Property description At 1 July Prior year  Additions Reclagsificati At30 June
) 2021 adjustment on fo other 2022.
_ assets.
Frw'million _ Frw'millio _
$ Frw'millions os  Frw'millions Frw'millions.
LAND FOR DEVELOPMENT ¢ 0 0 0 0
LOGEMENTS BATSINDA 2eme PHASE 7.684 0 4,347 0 12.031
Investment in CATCHUP INVESTMENTS ) 0 0
LIMITED _ 0 0 0
7,684 0 4,347 0 12,031
27.2. Inveéstmient properties undeér construction — medical scheme
At30 June 2023,
o At July Prior year ] . )
Property description 2022 adjustment At.30 June 2023
Frw'millions  Frw'millions Frw'millions
Land For Development _ - -
Property description At 1 July 2021 Additions At 30 June 2022
Frw'millions Fry'millions Frw'millions.
Land For Development = - =




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)

28. Assets held for sale

Cost

Opening at 1 July
Revaluation gain
Disposals

Closing at 30 June

RSSB’s assets held for sale comprise centre socio-recréatif at Kacyiru estate.

2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
96



RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD. -
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cﬂntﬁmedj

29. Equity investments

Scheme

Pension Scheme-
Medical Scheme
Taotal

29.1.. Equity investments — Pension

Equley Investee

Subsidlaries

(t',_'.m_ﬂro] evidenced by swnership el
50% or mare of prilinary sharves with

voting rights and board représéntation)

ULTIMATE DEVELOPMERS
LIMITED (UDL)

AKAGERA GAME LODGE {AGL}
BOMARWA LIFE ASSURANCE
RWANDA ULTIMATE GOLF COURSE
EDGE HOSTELS

SONARWA GENERAL INSURANCE
RWANDA FOREIGN HQLDINGS
INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED
(REHIC) ’

Joint Veature

(Jbint conteol evidenced with 50% af
ardinary shares {ronsiderng bath
pension azd credieal schimey) wil_f_l
veting rights and doAvd represantatlon)
BNT(RULIBA 2nd EAGD)

Asbociites

(Significant influence evidence with
owrershiz {consiilécing both pension.
and médical schemes) of 20%.or mord
af srdinary shares with votiog righis
and boanl representatlony T
ULTIMATE CONCEPT LTD

Y ANGE INDUSTRIES ETD
RWANDA DEYELOFMENT BANK
{BRD)

BANK, DF KIGALI tBK)

EASTERN PROVINCE INVESTMENT
CORPORATION (ERIC) :

CRYTSTAL TELECOM
HORIZON SOPYRWA LTD

RWANDA ENTERPISE INVESTMENT
COMPANY LIMITED {REIC)

CIMERWA Ld

‘Type af equity
‘Insirument.

Qrdindry. shares
'Oidinn.r_y-shams’

Drdinary: shares.

Ordinary sharas

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares’

Ordinary shares

Ordinary. sharis

Dzdi:nan'-sha.res
Ordinary.shares
Ordinary’ shargs

Ordinary sharés
Drdinan: chares

Drdininy shaces

Ordinary shires

Ortdinan shares.

Ordinary shares

2pane holding

2023

RELLO
e uita
000Nt
100%
£4:32%%

9,20

6505

44 0550

229
SR
25.97%

3%
LAY

837%

30.00%
2632%.

16.120%

Sub-Note
29.1
29,2
L INumber of
2tage halding - shayes held
w22 2423
OO0 s
b, s A2, tui
100 KRG 351,307
NiA ANTR2LO0Y
47 411 140532,
70,200 382,546,233
65.05% GATS I
K Y 487,432
2.24% 2316
AT T 000
26,428 17,892,275
- 33.49% 30266, 160
30.03% 55,159
637% 113,053,001}
RETRE 1262
26.52%. 2652,
10N 71153, (40

‘Carrying values
2023 2022
Frw' millions Frw'millions
549,723 487,065
60,792 56,802
610,514 543,897
Namber of Basis of Carrying Value C:':wr)'i.l]g
shares held measurement C et ‘Valiee fis at
225 022
2025 Frw'millions  Fro'mitlions
AT Fair valug 188 55,097
4042100 Fair valuse A2,E67 £3,163
104,005 Fair value 59713 -
Falr volue 45,722 260
RTET R -] Fair valug 194 L0972
IH2586,133 Fair vilue Q.07 12251
5,675,000 Fair value 5382 3,338
40,064 Fiir valuee 6,2l B3,
2306 Fair valug 1,636 1,834
3,260,100 Fait value 14:633 19,496
17,707,275 Fairxalue Al 28162
32966, 1K Fair yalue 46,648 B0;266
£55,259 Fairvaluo 134 1834
RE,033 K Fair ialue 144435 13,231
1262 Fair value 4,501 S87T
2,652 Fair valug 2] 1
71,153,640 Fair value CECH 8.538
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

.. %'-\‘E? holding Number of Neusber ol E_{asls _nr. . Carrying Yrlue Carrying
. S— ) ) e b e ek i . S
Equlry Invesiee :’::t:uf“%m':“) Shage holding shares heid shares bl musurement .as at Vilue m .s!
o 2013 20622
1023 gz 2623 208 Froemillions.  Fro'midlicay
RNITITERAMBERE Fund. Funil gnits’ Friir value 3508 52
Oﬁlu'equityirl\'_cshml_é
(Mo congzal or signilicunt isfluence
evidenced by ownership of ess than®
20%-ol erdinary.shares with voting.
Tights}
ﬁm‘:‘fg&m’gﬁ”@T GRQUP “Drdinary. shares 17300 17:35%, 240 24K Fiit value 32 (3241
Eg:ffﬁ?ﬂfﬂgémm Oudinary shases AN [EIETHTH 164748 164,748 Faif value - 4733 1,546
ey EoT COMPANY. RWANDA Ordinary, shares NiA NiA it s Fair value 5225 225
RWANDA STOCK EXCHANGE (RSE) Ordinary: shares 0% 130 1o It Fair vidue 32 64
EASTERN AND SOURTHERN . - o o
AFIICA TRADE DEVELOPMENT Ordinary shares L% 1% 3 1.818 Fair vatue 25414, 28762
BANK [FORMERLY PTA BANK)
Brassette i Limonadarie De Riyanda Oritinary shares 773% A A e ERIEE Fair vaiue 13,895 K067
(BRALIRWA) ; e o '- R ¥ : ;
1&K1 RWANDA “Ordinary shares bt G.E9% 74582, 74,962,700 Faie value 3,374 3220
NEW FORESTS COMPANY S o
HOLDINGS. LIMITED (U1K} Credinary shaies, - - - - Fair valtie - .
AFREXIMBANK Ordinary shiares et 0.08% M. t24 Fair value 3722 3,354
SAFARICOM Ordipary. shires 0.20% 012% H0L1S3 550 41,153,350 Eair yalue 11,703 10,599
EQUITY-GROYP Ordinary shires 1.3 1.08% 52,604,300 EIRITR T Fair value 16,788 15833
LEAF PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED Orifinary shares. s iUt 657 - 9T lost - -
WORLD VU SATELITES LIMITED Ordinary shares TigH i - - Cost: 1,193 Xl
AKAGER A MEDJCINES INC Ordinary shares. WA NeA- 6,000,000 6,000,000 “Cost 14,861 14861
; :’fﬁ‘g:?“ﬂ COMPANY RIWANDA Prelarence shares N NiA - Wit 100,000 Cost. 5568 X
VIRUKGA AFRICA FUND Ocdinary shares N/A NiA . - Cost 1278 6,393
EABL Ordinary:shares. 1.06% A 7,570 - AOMLH00 Edir value 631 3643
RATAPULT Qidiniry shiris RIZY SNfA 3,000 - Cost =T -
ZIPLINE Oidinary shares- Nia NiA 950,063 - Coit 33030 -
GREEN CITY KIGALI COMPANY Ordinary shiires, 780 A - - ‘Cost’ 3 .
KCB Group Ordinary shares AR 048 74,280,551 51,280,541 Pair vilue 938 EENILTS
TOTAL s;gzm m#g’

29,1.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under pension scheme during
the year

a) Summary reconciliation

2023 2022

Frw'millions _Frw'millions

As at 1 July 487,093 408,683
Additional Investmeiits during the year $2,300 76,414
Diisposals during the year {3,084) -
Share exchange ' - -
Gain/Loss on shate exchange. - 152,
Wﬁte'back;’(‘offs) - -
Fair valuation gain/{loss) during the year (16,388) 1,845
As at 30 June 549,723 '437.095.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
_FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

b) Detailed reconciliation per-equity investee

Additiow Falr  Carrylng
Carrying  al capital GainiLos . . valuajip walue 28
wvalug as injeetion L Ferrx Tosom Disposal . oo at 30
. At L July during “Shave, gainfloss ‘share~ ¥ during Write pain{los Juns
Equity Tivestes 2022°  thevear -exchange ) éachange.  the year off Ay 2023
) Frw'mill Fra‘mifl Frv'mill  Frw'mill Frw!mill Frw'mill  Frw'mill Frw'mdl Frw'mill
lons ions ions iong L0 ions. -lons ions: ‘fons
Sups_'n?inrées
LLTIMATE DEVELOPMERS LIMITED (UDL) 43 it - - - - - - LE92 G688
AKAGERA GAME LODGER (AGL) 13 083 346 . R ~ ’ } (542 E2H67
SONARWA LIFE ASSURANCE - 3008 B B B A B 2772 5,771
RWANDA VLTIMATE GOLF COURSE, IRIAG 6927 . - - . - {370 M3
?Rx;'ﬁé?,\ FOREIGN INVESTMENT HOLDING COMPANY LIMITED 3318, . ) ) ) ] - agls 5382
EDGE HOSTELS' 11,872 . R . A R . @3 18
SONARWA GENERAL INSURANGE 12259 R - - - - - (3180} 9071
RNIT Ierambere Fimd 323 E R R . R . 67 3,591
Jaint venhre . } L . _ _
BMI{RULLBA aiiil EAGI) LRI . - - - - - tzsEny 121
Assciales: - .. R . _
RAWANDA DEVELOEMENT BANK (BRD) 24,162, . . R N . R 339 6401
ULTIMATE CONCERT LTD. L4324 i - - . - - z LK36
. INYANGE INDUSTRIES LTD 15,396 - } . . . R {843 14,653
BANK OF KIGALI (BK} 8,246 . B _ . R A 6362 86,644
CRYTSTAL TELECOMMTN RWANDA 15,24 4737 - - - - B 513 JEREL]
HORIZON SOFYRWA L1D BETT - } . } ; } 224 ER]|
RWANDA ENTERPISE INVESTMENT COMPANY LIMITED (REIC) 60l - &0
CIMERWA Lid 5334 ) - - - . - 854 302
EASTERN PROVINCE INVESTMENT CORPORATION (EPIC) L83+ - ) ) . N . - KK
Otler equity Il_:mlme_n_ls- . o . . R _
RWANDA INVESTMENT.GROUP LIMITED [RIC) 32 R - - - - : 33 3274
PRIME ECONOMIC ZONES COMPANY LIMITED 43546 - . N : . } 1k7 #7133
NEW FOREST COMPANY RWANDA (NFCR) 225 ) . i . i i o 5228
RWANDA STOCK EXCHANGE(RSE) I . - - - - - 56 113
E:}'S}'\E‘% RA'J:_E Rsl:::‘r;,.-ir){;rr g"f:t i‘(\;FRlCA TRADE DEVELOFMENT 28,782 i} ] ) ] ) 3 (3363 15 79,
BRALIRWA BAET 4,799 . . B . . 1033 LR
1M RWANDA, ER) . - - - - - 180 33M
NEW FORESTS COMPANY HOLDINGS LIMITED (UK} -
AFREXIMBANK 3334 R R R : B . 364 3722
SAFARICOM I 7031 . - . - : (3.936) 1,703
EQUITY GROUP R34 3213 N . B . . s 16,788
LEAF PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED o - B R R . . 9 N
WURLD VU SATELITES LIMITED L0GT i . - - - - 128 L4935
AKAGERA MEDICINES ING [XE7) . N R . R A 8 1,864
NEW FOREST COMPANY, RWAND A {NFC R PREFERENCE SHARES 5,968 - . B _ . _ 0 5965
VIRUNGA AFRICA FUND 6393 532" . . . . . 0 12
EABL 1683 - - L B (3,089 - 32 431
" KATAPULT - 40 - - - - R - 540
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RWANDA SOCTAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Addition -Fair  Carrying

Carrying - al capital Gain/Los . valuatio vahiens

‘valueas  imjection Forex Ton Disposal _ n M0

at 1-fuly during: Share ghiafloss share 5 during Write gaint{log Jume’

- Equity Investee I theyenr  exchange i exchinge ihe year . olfg ] HB
Fow!mill Frw'mill Fra'mitl Fre'mill’ Frw'mill Fra'mill Frw'mill Fra'miil Frw'mill

doms iemg: “jons “iams, fons fong ions “ioms fons’

HIPLINE: - 33,30 - - - 33,080
GREEN CITY KIGALT COMPANY R a1 _ . R _ 619
KCB GROUP 15056 9,731 - - - rddo 19,384-
TOTAL 487,005 L300 - - - {3,084). - (r6S88)  Se0Tis

.¢) Significant fair valuation gains during the year ended 30 June 2023

‘Bank of Kigali: FRW 6.3 billion gain

The fair value gain is-due te the increase of the share price that-incréased from Fiw 2635 per share on 30 June 2022

“to Frw 286 per share.as at-30 Jung 2023,

‘Sonarwa Life Assurance — FRW 2.7 billion.gain

The fair value gain of Finv-2.7 billion i3 on account of the company's good performance for the’ penod that has led
to it generafing net assets in the current period. Net income for the period was Few 2.7 bitlion compared to net foss
of Frw 562 million and closing net liabilities of Frwv 562 millien in the piior: period.

‘Eastern and Southern Trade Deveélopment Bank: FRW-3.3 billion loss

During the year, a fair value gain of FRW 9 billion on.equity investment in Eastern and Southern Trade -
Development Bank was realised duc to-growth of overall shares subscribed inthe company léading a dilution of the.

‘income per share. This is despite the increase i net assets and net income of US$ 208 million during the period.

‘BRALIRWA: FRW 1.1 billion gain

The. fair vilue pain is dpe 1o the inerease of the share price that increased from Frw 166 per share-as at 30 June
2022 to Frw 1673 per share.on 30 June 2023. '

Ultimate Developers Lid: FRW 1.6 billion gain
The fair valoe gain of Frw 1.6 billion is prlmanl) due 't the teported net income’ of Erw 1.3 billion during the

period ‘which was. an 87% increase fromi the prior period contributing to the growth net asset growth of the
company.

d) Significant fair valuation losses: during the year ended -30'June 2023

Safavicom: FRW 5.9 billion loss

The fair value lgss is: consistent with the movement in share price for Sataricom shares. Thé price fell from Frw’
224 (Kes 9.03) per share in June 2022 10 Frwl46 { Kes 8.34) per share in Jung 2022. In addition, the-Board
purchased an _additlonal_ 33'million shates during the:year:

KCB Group: FRW 8.4 billion Toss
The fair value loss is consistént ‘with the movement in share price for KCB shares. The price. fell from KES 38. 65

per share (June. 2022) to- KES 29.3 -per share (Jun¢ 2023). The board also miade additional share purchases of
28.000,000 thus increasing the RSSB shares from 31,289,541 10 79,289,541 in 2022 and 2023 re*;pectwely
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE.YEAR ENDED 30 JONE 2023

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
d) Significant fair valuaiion losses during the year ended 30 June 2023 Continued

EQUITY BANK _(.Gro'up')_': FRW 4.2 billion loss

The tair-value loss is consistent with thé movement in share price for Equity Group shares. The price fell from KES
43,2 per share (June. 2021) to 38:25 KES per sharc (June 2023). In addition, RSSB- purchascd an ‘additional 12
million shares,

RWANDA ULTIMATE GOLF COURSE — FRW 3.4 billion loss

The fair value loss. of Frw 3.4 billion is atiributed to the net loss of Frw. 1,5 b:]llon durlng the period. It is' mainly

due to the transition from. the cost model to fair value modeI RUGC started its operations in- August 2021. The first

phasc {constructmn of the golf course). was completed in 2020:and has been operational since August 2021.The
second phase (construction of the clubhiouse) is curently ongoing, while the feasibility study of the third phase.
(development-of a golf resort) was concluded in 2022,

SONARWA GENERAL INSURANCE ~FRW 3 biilion loss

The fair value loss.of Frw 3 billion was due to poor performance of the company during the period. The company
reported net loss of Frw 993 million during the peried compared to net income of Frw. 1.6 billion iin the previous

yéar,

BMI (RULIBA and EAGD)- Frw 2.6 billion loss

The fair value loss of Frw 2.6 billion was aitributed to the ‘company”s fet loss during the period of Frw 639 million.
The loss in2022 Wwas mainly drivén by the high operating and finance cost, At the previous valuation, the company
had reported a net.loss of Frw 1.8 billion.

Crystal Telecom/MTN Rwanda: FRW 513 million loss

The fair value loss is backed by the movement in-share pricé for MTN shares. The prlCC fell from
Frw 117 per sharé {June 2022) to Frw 172 per share (Jone 2023).

29.2. Equity inveéstments — Medical

) ) Number o Carrying Carrying
L Type of equity Lo v 1 Nuriber of o Bails of- Valueas.at.  Value gs at
Eqmt_) Tvestee instrument %ouge hinlding-  “oage hiolding shares held of shares Mmensurement.. .30 Jure. 30 Junc
' held 2023 2022
2023 2022 iz 2023 Frw'milliens  Frw'miilions
Subsidiiry )
RWANDA FOREIGN
HOLDINGS INVESTMENT s Py i 4507 : 7 200 s . . aas
COMPFANY LIMITED Ordinary shares 28.55% 18.55% 2,889,606 3,889,604 Fair valué 3,330 1,445
{RFHIC)
Associate
BANK OF KIGALI {BK}) Ordimary. sharcs 0,85% 0.85%% 7.723,900 1,723,900 Fair value 2.209 2,047
COGEBANQLUE sa Ordinary shares 0.60% 30.60% 21375 23,3715 Fair valuc. 14,158 REX %
CIMERWA Ltd Ohrdinary shares 10.12% 10.12% 7E155,020  TL153.070 Fair value 9.392 8,538
Other eguity investm enia
RWANDA INVESTMENT S S ‘ rin _— e o - 7
'GROUP LIMITED (RIG) Orifinary sharcs 5.20% 3327% 720 70 Fair value 953 972
EASTERN AND
SOURTHERN AFRICA ) ) ) ) )
TRADE DEVELOFMENT Ordimary shires 1.13% 1.12%. 1374 1376 Fairvalue 235,601 28,983
BANK (FORMERLY PTA
BANKO ] N ) )
BRALIRWA Ordinary shares 0:82% 0.82%; 8,404,201 8,404,200 -Fair valuc: 1,471 1345
ZIPLINE Ordinary shares N/A N 09. 590 ¥ Cost 4,648 0
T RWANDA LIMITED Preferenc shares NA NiA 11 i Amortjsed cost: L 0
TOTAL 60,792 56,502
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _ _
ANNT/AL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT, S-:(conﬁhue'a)

29.2.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under medical scheme during

the year

Asat1 Fuly

‘Prinr year adjustnient

.a). Summary reconciliation

Additional Investments during the year

‘Interest on preference dividends

Fair valvation ga_inf(loss) 'du_rih_g the year

Asat30 June

b) Detailed reconciliation per equity investee

Equity Investee

Subsidiary

RWANDA FOREIGN

HOLDINGS INVESTMENT
COMPANY LIMITED
{(RFHIC)

Associafe

BANK OF KIGALI (BK)
COGEBANQUE $A
CIMERWA LIMITED

‘Other equity investments:
RWANDA TNVESTMENT
GRCUP LIMITED (RIG)
‘EASTERN AND =

SOURTHERN AFRICA
TRADE DEVELOPMENT
'BA_N_K {(FORMERLY PTA
BANK)

BRALIRWA

ZIPLINE

KT RWANDA LIMITED:
TOTAL

2023 2022

Frw'millions Frw'millioris

36,802 48,686

4,648 270

(6358) 7,846

60,792 56,802

Additignal - L

; g Prior year - Carrying

Carrying value _ capial  Intereston DL'?'"-’S‘:S' adjustment - Fair e as ar
sis at T July 2022 d‘-’“{“‘_'"“ p;.eff’;e"gf during the o rsctiome "‘.'13“1':”" 30 Jine
uring the ividends: vear ‘correction gain/(loss) T 3023

year L

Frw'millions Fiw'millions TFrw'millions Frw'millions Fiw'niillions Frw'millions Frw'millions.
1445 8§85 2,330

2,047 - - : 162 2,209

13,457 " - - - 692 14,138

8,534 - - - - 854 9,392

972 . i ) - 10 982

28,988 {3.387) 25,601
1,345 - - - - 126 1A7}

- 648 - - - - 4,648
56,302, 4,648 - - - (658) 60,792
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinuted)

120.2.1. Reconciliation of changes in carrying values of equity investments under medical scheme during

the year

¢} Significant fair valuation gains/losses during the year ended 30 June 2022

Eastern and Southern Africa Trade Developmeiit Bank: FRVW 3.4 billion loss-

The fair value loss is primarily due to the reduction in the net asset value owing to poor performance
during the year.

CIMERWA - FRW 854 million gain

The: fair_value- gain'is due to the cornpany’s continued good performance reflected in the increase of their-
share price on the Rwanda Stock Exchange ffom Frw 120 in 2022 te Frw 132:as at 30 June 2023.

Cogebangque: FRW 692 million

The fair value gain is consistent with the coiripany's performance compared which has led to increased

net assets of the bank.

Rwanda Foreign Holdings Investment Company Limited (RFHIC) — FRW 885 million gain

THe fair-value gain is primarily due to increased net assets of the company during the year.



RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
3. Ceorporaté bonds

Sub note’

Agaciro Development Fund- 301
Crystal Ventures Limited. 302
ENERGICOTEL ' 303
GASMETH 304
UECL. 305
.30, Corporate bonds - Pension’

NPD 306

Classification of Corgidrate bonds (Non-carrent Vs Cirrent)

Non-cirrent

Crystal Ventures Limited
Agaciro-Development Find
ENERGICOTEL
GASMETH

UFCL

NPD.

Cuirvent

Crystal Ventures Limited
‘Apaciro Development Find
[ENERGICOTEL
GASMETH

UFCL

NED

30.2. Corporate bond issued by Agaciro Development Fund

At-1July
Opening baltance adjustment
Placement

Accrued illtqr_cst

Maturity

‘Graoss at 30 June.

Impairmént provisiori (IFRS 9)
Nét at-30 June

2023 2022
Frw'millions Fry'millions
8,500 9726
23,041 #3,069.
1,120 1253
11,463 10,133
14,034 13,5318
15671 0
73,829 57,699
2023 Z022
Frw'millions Fry'millions
21,711 22,541
{1,226) 8,301
1,068 17096,
10,845 9,951
9,532 12,435
9.71Q

41,930 30,842
1,331 529
9,726 1425
52- 158

617 182
4502 1,083
5,961 0
16,228, 1954
2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'milliens
9773 11,329
0 (304)

0.00 0
it 1223
(2.333) (2.474)
8,551 9,773
{319 {47)
8,500 9,726
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. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30.3. Corporate bond issued by Crystal Ventures Limited

At 1 July

‘Opening balance adjustment

Placement

Accrued interest

Maturity

At 30 June

Tmpairment provision (IFRS 9)
Netat 30 June

30.4. Corporate bond issued by ENERGICOTEL

At 1 July’

Placemeént

-Accrued interest

Maturity

A£30 June

Impaitment provision (IFRS )
Net at 30 Jure

30.5. Corperate bond issued by GASMETH

At July

Placement

Accrued interest

Maturity

At 30 June

Impairment provision {IFRS 9)
WNet at 30 June

30:6. Corporate bond issued by UFCL

At 1 July

Placement

Accrued interest

Maturity

At .30 June

Impaitmerit provision (IFRS 9}
Net-at 30 June

3023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
23,180 13,223
0 304
0 10,250
2.84 1,962
(2,8413: (1.560)
23,180 23,180
£139) a1
23,041 23,060
2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
1,256 0
6 1,250
151 158
(284) (148}
1127 1,259
{n (6}
1,120 1,253
2023 2022
Erw'millions. Frw'millions
10,182 0
0 10,000
1,350 182
0 0
1,532 10,182
(69) @9y -
11,463 10,133
2023 2022
Friv'millions Erw'millions
13,583 i
500 12,500
1,536 1,083
{1,500) 9
14,119 13,583
(85) (65)
14,034 13,518
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contimied)
30.7. Corporate bond issued by NPD

At 1 Tuly

"Placement

Acerued inierest
Maturity

At 30 June
Impairment provision-(IFRS 9)

Net at 30 June

31. Treasary bonds

2023

Frw'millions
0

15,575

871

(480)

2022
Fry'millions-

15,765

(95)

15,671

olo @io o o D

The treasury bonds held by RSSB as at the end of the year per scheme were as follows:

Description Sub-Note
‘Treasury bonds - Pension scheme 311
Treéasury bords - Medical scheme: 312
Treasury bonds - Maternity scheme N3
Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza scheme 314
Tatal

Classtfication of Governmeént Bonds (Nen-current
Vs Ciirrent)

Non-curvent.

Treasury bonds - Pension scheme

Treasury bonds - Medical scheme

Treasury bonds - Maternily leave scheme

Tredsury bonds - Ejo Heza

Sub-total (1)

Current
Treasury bonds - Pension scheme

“Treasury bonds - Me_clii:al. scheme

Treasury bonds - Maternity leave scheme
Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza

Sub-total (2).
Grand total {152)

Balance is at

Balance as at.

30-Jun23. 3-fun-22
Frw'millions Fro'millions
315,404 191,768
129340 58,763
32,357 6,832
41,587 21,775
518,687 285,138
309,841 167.534
127,934 52,995
32365 6,477
27,651 25,240
497,810 252,247
5,563 24,233
1,386 5,767

&3] 335

13,937 241
20,877 32,766
518,687 285,013
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

31.2.. Treasury bonds — Pension scheme

Particular 2023 2022
Frw'niillions Frw'millions
Opening balance 1 July 192,670 145,870
Prior year adjustments 184 0
Inveéstment during the year 125,250 60,578
Intcrcst‘-.'_in_come earned during the ‘year 30475 18,900
Receipts during the year (31,834) (31,643)
Cost.on T-Bonds 0 o
Late payment on Treasury Bonds: 0 (726)
Discount on T-bonds. 0 (310)
Closing 30 June 316,745 192,670
Impairment provision: {1.341) {903}
Closing 30 Junc 315,404 ‘191,768
The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair value.
31.3. Treasury bonds — Medical scheme
2023 2022
_ _ Frw'millions Erw'millions
Opening balance 1 July 39,016 36,028
Tnves_tmént:during the year 86,912 26,810
Interest income .c_émcd during.the year 11,186 4,963
Receipts during the year (_27,_224) (8,788)
Cost on T-Bonds 0 0
Late payment on T-Bonds 0 @
Discount on T-bonds 0 2
Closing.30 June 129,890 59,016
Impairment provision {550) {253)
Closing 30 June 129,340 58,763
The amortized cost of the governmient securities ¢losely approximates their fair value,
31.4, Treasury bonds- maternity leave schemé
2023 2022
Frw'millioas Frw'millionis
Opening balance 1 July 6,864 6,864,
Ihir:sungnt during the year 25,694 0
Tnterest income earned during the vear 2,024 736
Riceipts during the year (2.088) (736)
Cast on T-Bonds 0 (1}
Digcount on'T-bonds 0 0
Closing 30 June 32,494 6,864
Impairment provision ' (138 {32
Closiiig 30 Juoe. 32,357 6,832
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND F[NANCLAL_STATEMEN_TS'.

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
31.5: Treasury bonds - Ejo Heza

2023 2022

Frw'niillions Erw'millions

Operiing batance 1 July 21,715 15,657
investment during the year 15.837 12,681
Tnterest incomie earned during the year. 4,230 : 2?-496
Receipts during the year (6.177) (2,368)
Cost'on T-Bonds 0 (588)
Advance payment 0 {103)
Closing 30 June 41,705 27,775
_Impair;ﬁ_ent p_rn\_ri_sio_n (118) (124)
Closing 30 June 41,587 27,651

32. Treasury bills

Balance as at

Balance as at

Description Sub-Note 30.Jun-23 30-Jun-22
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Treasury Bills - Pension s¢heme 32.1 0,568 22,385
Treasury bills - Medical schéme 322 32,434 38,046
“Treasury bills - Maternity leave sctieme 123 2,336 1,870
"Treasury bills < CBHI 324 19.711 i
Total 64,070 62,390
32.2. Treasury bills — Pension scheme

Particular 2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
Opening balance [ July 22,491, 50,227
Opening balance adjusument 0 g
‘Purchases 21,322 41,357
Interest dccruad 1,145 2,506
Late payimeni on T, Bills ] (12)
Maturities {35.330) (71,593).
. Closing 30 June 9,608 22:491
Impairment provision (41) (108)
Closing 30 June 5,568 22,383

‘The amortized cost of the government securities closely approximates their fair-value.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD,
ANNUALREPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32.3, Treasury bills— Medical scheme:

Particular 2023 2022
Friv'millions. Frw'millions
Opening balance 1 July 38,229 42,536.
Purchases 50,705. 62,839
Tnlerest-accrued 2,878 3,621
Late.payment.on 'I_‘._;Bills o )
Maturities (59,240 (70,786}
Closing 30 June 32,5712 38,229
Impaitment provision (138) (184)
Closing.30 June 32,434 38,046
The amortized cost of the government securifies closely approximates their fair value.
32.4. Treasury bills.— Maternity leave scheme
Particutar 2023 2022
_ - Frw'millions Frw'millions
‘Opening balance 1 July 1.97%- 3,954
Purchases 2275 1,822.
Interest accrued 112 184
Maturities (2.000) (3.980)
Closing 30 June 2,366 1,979
‘Impdirment provision {10} (16}
Closing 30 Junc- 2,356 1,970
The amortized cost of the governmenit securities closely approximates their fair value.
32.5. Treasury hills — CBHI
Pariicular 2023 2022
_ Erwv'millions Erw'millions
Opening balance 1 July 0 0
‘Purchascs 19,781 0
Interest accrued 14 0
Maturities O 0
Closing 30 June 19,793 0
Irnpairmient provision 84) 0
Closing 30 June. 19,711 0
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ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
TOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continited)

33, Commercial papers

During the year, RSSB invested in commercial papers'as follows:

-Company issuing commercial paper

HORIZON GROUP
NPD Limited
NGALI Holdin_g-L_imited

RULIBA Clays Ltd

Total

Détails.of the commerciat papers are ag follows:

33.2. Commercial paper issued by Horizon Group

‘Opening balance 1 July

Purchases during the year
[terest-acerued during the year
Maturities

Closing 30 June

Sub-Note'

33.1
330
332
33

2023 2023

Frw'millions ‘Frw'millions

0 0

() (0

50,658. 29,751
7,280

57,038 29,751

1023 2022

Frw'millions Frw'millions.

On 22 February .2'0__19_, Commer_é_ial papers with Horizon Group Limi_ted were renewed attracting an annual
interest of 11% with.a terini -of 364 days from purchase. This .commercial paper matured and was fully. settled in.

2020.

33.3. Commercial papers issued by NPD Limited

‘Opeéning I_Jalan_c;r: | July-

Purchases during the year
Interest accived during the year
Maturities:

Closing 30 June

Impairment provision
Closirig 30 June

2023 2022
Frw'millions ‘Frw'millions
m 12,849

. 0

o 898.

0 (13,748).

@ 0

0 [0}

() {0}

On 15 May 2021, Commercial papet with NPD Limited was extended for. 2 months. attracting an annual interest

of 10%
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

33.4. Cominercial papers issued by Ngali Holding Limited

2023 2022

Frw'millions Frw'millions.

.Opening balance 1 July 30,567 17,250

Purchases during the year 20,000 13,085

Tmterest accrued during the year 5,025 2,414

Maturities. {4.628) {2,182)

Closing 30 June 50,963 30,367
Impairment provision {306) (B16) .

Clusing 30 June 50,658 29,751

During the year, NH issued a comrmiercial paper of Frw 20 billion attracting.an annual interest rate of 12% with a.

term of 364 days.

33.5. Commercial papers issued by RULIBA Clays Limited

2023 2022

Frw'millions Frw'millions

Opening balance 1 July 0 0
Purchases during the year 7.324 1]
Interest accrued during the year 0 ]
Maturities 0 0
Closing 30 June 7324 0
Impairment provision (44) 0,
.Closing 30 Juae 7,280 0

On 30 June 2023, Ruiliba issued & commercial paper of Frw 7 3 billien attracting an annual interest rate of 10%.

with.a term of 90 days.

34. Loans and Advances to third parties- Government

Pension Medical CBHI Maternity leave Total

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023
Suki Fraw'mi Frw'mi TFro'mi  Fre'mi  Frw'mi  Frw'nii  Few'mi

2022 2023 2022
Frow'mi  Frw'mi  Frw'mi

“Total 3,989 8,140 26,111 28,795 L Q o

nete- liens ilions Itians Itigns -llions llions Ilions Ilions. Ilions llions .
Loan to:City of Kigali 34.1 0 LisI o 0 0 0 0. 0 0 115
Loans to MININERA 342 3989 3980 0 0 0 0 . D 398 3989
Loanto, ) N
MINECOFIN (CBHI 0 o o _
‘financing loan) 343 26,111, 28795 0 [t} o 0 26,111 28,795
o 30,100 33,935

1t1



RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)

Classification of advances to third parties (Non-current Vs Current)

Pension Medical Totat
2023 2032 2023 2022 2023 2022
‘Frw'millions Frw'niillions Frov'milions Frw'millions  Frw'millions:  Frw’inillions
Non-currens
Loan to City of Kigali o 1,151 o 0 o 1151
Loans to.WNmFRA'. y 0 b 0 0. U
Loan to MINECOFIN t 4] 26,268 28,933 26268 28933
Sub-totaf (1)- 0 1,151 26,268 28,933 26268 30,084
Current
ILoan ta City of Kigali ) 0 o 0 K 0
Loans to MININFRA 3,98 3,989 0 0 5980 3,989-
Loan.io MINECOFIN 26,111 0 28,795 26,111 28,705
‘Sub-total (2) 30,180 3,989 0 28,795 30,100, 32,784
‘Grand total (1+2) 30,100 5,140 26,268 33,812 56,368 62,868
34.2. Loan to City of Kigali
2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
At Tuly 1,156 1,336
Reclassification from MININFRA 165
Repayments: {1,321} {180)
At 30 June 0 1,156
[mpairment provision (5)
At 30 June 0 ‘1,151

The loan to City of Klgah is from the agreement for Kibagabaga - Kinyinya road project hetween City of Kigali,
RSSB and Horizon Group where: City of Kigali was responsible of contribution for the 60% of the total
éxpropriation cost evaluated for the branch connecting to RSSB-and 50% for the branch connecting fo Horizon
Group LTD investmeri sites, cortribution of 100% cost for the study of road and contract management of all
‘contracts related to this project which is road study- and supervision services, road construction works and the
exproprlation related services. On 21 March 2019, an agreement between RSSB and City of Kigali to provide for
the modalities of payment amounts due to RSSB by the City of Kigali was signed. The-amounts covered under
the agreement are as follows:

Details Amount (Frw)
Advarce for the construction of Kibagabaga— Kinyinya road. 876,247.281
Compensation for plot transferred to Well Spring Academy 850,000,000
Total 1,726,247.281

It was agreed that payment would be made over a period of six (6) years from the financial year 2018/2019 to the
financial ‘year 2023-2024. Payment was 1o be executed on a quarterly basis withi a payment of Frw 75,000,000

per.quarter,
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conrihued)'

34.3. Loan to MININFRA

2023

- Loan for Partitioning:

Toar for.CBD1 Infrastructure of Kicukito pen siéq Total
plaza
Frw'millions. Fra'miflions Fry millions-
At July 3,859 149- 4,009
Reclassification to City of Kipali (1as)
Additions- - o 0 0
Repayments: o 0. 0.
At 30 June 3,604 149 4,009
Impairment provision: {9 0 {19),
At30 Juqe 3,675 149. 3,989
34.4. Loan to MINECOFIN (CBHI Subsidy)
' 2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'miflions.
AL July 28,933 30629
Additions. a 0
Repayments - (2.665) (1.696Y
At 30 Juiie 26,268 28,933
Tinpairment provision (158) (139):
At 30 June 26,111 28,795

The Loan to MINECOFIN relates to amounts advanced to.Cornmunity Based Health Insurance (CBHI) Scheme

35, .Mbrtgages_' foans

Pension Medical- Tuaial
2023 2022 2023 2023 2023 2023
Fewhititlions Frw'millions Frw'milliéns Frw'millions Frw'mitlions " Few'millions
At 1.July: i a8 o 0 1 2
-Adjustment 1o opening balance 5 + o 0 @5y, 2
Unallocaied repeipts on Mortgage laans - ' : B
prior year 45 66 4] ] - 46 66
Receipts during the ycar {27 128) [)s o @zn (23)
Unellocated reocipts of Mortsiue Joans- a 6 o o . (46
Reclassification ko other paya.]:fes 47 0 o o 47, o
Balance at the 30 Junc ‘32 1t M 0. az 1t
Impairment provision o 0 U . . P 8
Net balange at 30 June 32 1n 0. " - 1
Classification of Mortgage loans (Non-current Vs Current)
l’cr_lsinn.schémé Medical scheme Totat
At 30 June 2023 AC30 June2022  AL30 June2023  At30 June 2012 2023 2033
Frw'millions Fro'miltions Frw'millions. Frw'mitlions Frw'millions Frw'milfions
Non-tarrent 13 5 a o i3 5
Curent = 7 o b g 7
“Total 32 11 a 0 ‘32 I
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

45. Capital Accumulated members funds and ret__a'i'ned' earnings

(a) Share capital

Pensien Medical Total
Frw Frw Frw
At 1 Juiy 2021 53 1,179 1,232
At 30 June 2022 53 1,179 1,232
At 1 July 2022 53 1,179 1,232
At 30 June 2023 53 1,179 1,232
This:resew_c_i'ecords_ai'l transfers received from the Government.of Rwanda through the Ministry of Finance and
Economic Planning (MINECOFIN} which are designated as capital to the Board
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD.
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
46. Revaluation reserve

The revaluation surplus represents the surplus on the revaluation of land, buildings and investment
properties and is non-distributable. Movements. in the reserve.are shown on the statement of changes

in equxty.

Pension Medical Teotal

) _ Frw' mllllons Frw'millions Frw'millions

At.1 Juiy 2021 79,707 5,981 $5.688

Revaluation gain/(loss) 7.441 1§54 9.294
At.30 June 2022 87,148 7,834 94,982

AtlJuly2022 87,148 7.834 94,982
Revaluation gain/(loss) 0 0 0

At 30 June 2023 ' 87,148 7,834 94,982

47. Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve represents the surplus on the revaluation of equity investments at fair value
through profit and loss, and investment properties. This. surpius. is. non-distributable. Movements in

the reserve are shown on the statement of changes in equity. The revaluation has no deferred tax
impact 45 RSSB is tak exempt by law,

Pensian Mediral Total
023 2022 2023 2022 2623, 2022
Frw'millions Fro'millions Frw'millions  Frw/millions  Fre'millions  Frw'millions
AL July (A) (42,775) {44.621) 22,186 14,340 {20,590 (30,281)
Adjustrent'th apeiling balarice ] 0 B

Allotment of inciease in net

assetdduring the year -

fin(i065). ariging fron

chianges in. fait values of equity . .

investments (B) {16:388) 1.845 (658) 7.846 (17.347) 9,691
Allgmment of inctease in-net ' '

assefs during the year -

gmm’(luss) arising fon change.

in fair value of investmeit

properics 0 il il 1] 0 0

At 30 June(D=A+B) (59,364, (42,796) 21,527 122,186 {37,837 (20,590)

48. Statutory reserves

The statitory reseives are set out by decreée law of 22 August 1974 concerning organisation of Social

Security. Article 15 of the Law sttpulates that the National Sacial Security Institutions provide the

following reserves for both the occupational hazards and pensions braniches;

a) Pension Working Capital reserve is equivalent to a quarter of the total expenses of the pension’s
branch previous year

b) Pension Technical reserve should not be fower than the total expenses. of the branch for the
current three years

¢) Occupational Hazards Technical reserve must be‘equal to twelve times the total amount of
occupational hazards paid during the yeat

d) Occupational Hazards Security reserve is.equal to a quarter of the expenses incurred during the

* last three years '

¢} Occupational Hazards Working capital reserve should be equal to a quarter of the expenses of the

PIEvious year.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
48, Statutory reserves continued

Statutory Teserves as at the end of the year were as follows:

Occupational hazard reserve -technical 48.1
Occupational hazard reserve -Security 48.2
Otcupational hazard reserve- Working capital 48.3
Sub-total (1)

Pension reserve~ technical. 48,4
Pension reserve- working capital 48.5
Sub-total (2)

Total

48.1. Occupational hazard reserve -technical

At T July (A)

Allotment of increase in net assets-during the o
year (B) 49.1 {a)
Allotment of decrease in accupational hazard

teserve - techhical

At30 June (C=A+B)

48.1 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve

Oteupational hazard benefit paid during the year ended 30 Jung 2023 (B} [See note 10.1]

Allgeation of increase in net assets to Qecupational hazard technical Feserve {Bx12)

Occupational hazard benefit paid during the year ended 30-fune 2022 [See note 10.1]
AHocation of increase in netassets to Ocecupational hazard technical reserve (Bx12)

48.2. Occupational hazard reserve -Security

At 1 July (A)
Allotment-of increase in net assets during the-
year (B) ' 49,2 (a)

At 30 June (C=A+B)

2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
65,401 63,922
5,646 8.668
3475 3.141
78,522 75,732
799,196 681,035
56482 416.492
855,678 727,527
934,200 803,259 _
Pension
2023 2022
Frw'millions’ Frw'millions
63,922 78,225
1,479 1,333
0 (15,636} _
63,401 63,922
Amount
{(Frw'millions)
1479
1,479
1.333
15,997
Pénsion
2023 2522
Frw'millions' Frw'millions
8.668 7,769
978 899
9,646 8,668
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

48.2 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve.

Tatal occupational biazard b__e_neﬁ't_s expense 20_2_0
Total oecupational hazard benefits expense 2021
Total occupational hazard benefits-expense 2022
Total occupétional hazards benefit expenses-paid in t_he- last three years-(ﬁ)

Allgeation-of inérease in net-assets‘of pcnsi'u_n scheme to reserve (C=Ax25%)

Total occupational hazard benefiis-expense 2020
Total occupational hazard benefits expense 2021
Total occupational hazard benefits'expense 2022
Total occupational hazards benefit expenses paid in the-last thred'years (A)

Allocation of inerease in net assets of pension scheme to. reserve (C=Ax25%)

48.3.. Occﬁpatio'n'al hazard reserve- Working capital

At.] Fuly (A)
Allotment of increase in net assets during the _
year (B) 49.3(a)

At30 June (C=A+B)

48.3""(_'3).Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year to reserve

Total cecupaticnal liazard benefits:expense 2022

Allgcation of increase in net assets of pension schemie to reserve (Frw) (B=Ax25%)

Total eccupational hazard beriefits expense 2022

Allocation of inerease in net assets of pension scheme to-reserve (Firw) (B=Ax25%)

48.4, Pension reserve- technical

At 1 July (A)
Allotment of increase in net-assets during the
year {(B)’ 49.4 (a)

At 30 June (C=A+BY

- Amount
(Frw'millions)
343
371
437
1,151
288,
Amount
{Frw'millions).
814
1,050
896
2,761
6949
‘Pension
2023, 2022
Frw'millions: "Frw'millions
3.141 2,786
333 355 .
3475 3141
~ Amount
(Frw'milliens)
437
103
896
224
Perision
2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'millions
681,035 577,938
118,161 103,097
799,196 631,035
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RWANDA S0OCiAL SECURITY BOARD _ )
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

48.4 (a) Reconciliation of allotment of net income for the year

Total Pension benefiis expense (Paid to Pensicners) 2021
Total Pension benefits expense:{Paid to Pensioners) 2022
Total Pension benefits expense {Paid to Pensioters} 2023
Total benefits expense for the last three years (A)

Allogation-of net assets to pension technical reserve (B=A)

Total Pension -beneﬁts expense (Paid to deceased members Beneficiaries) 2021
Tatal Pesion benefits expense (Paid _to.dq_cea_sed'membcrs 'Beneﬁciarie_s) 2022
Total Perision benefits expense (Paid to decensed members Beneficiaries) 2023

Total benefits expense for the fast three years (A)

Allgeation of net assets to pension technical reserve (B=A)

48.5. Pension reserve- working eapital

At 1 July (&)
Atlotment-of incréase.in net assets during the
year (B) 49.5 (a)

At 30 Junc (C=A+RB)

Amount
(Frw'millions)
29.300
34,501
38,545

102,346

102,346

Amdunt
{Erw'millions)
4,527
5,458
5,831

15815

15,815

Pension

2023

Frw'millions

46,492,

5,990

2022
Frw'millions
38,035

8,457

56,482

46,492

48.5. (a) Reconciliation of allocation of net income for the year to reserve-

Benefits.paid to pensioners in 2022 (A) [see note 10.1]

Allocation of increase in net assets to Pension warking capital reserve for the year (B=A*25%

Benefits paid to pensioners in '2'022 (A)

Alloeation of incresse in net assets to Pension working capital reserve for theyear (B=A*_25% .

-Amount
{Frw'millions)
34,501

8,625

Amount
(Few'milliohs)y
5,458

1,364
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD _
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

49, Unallécated pensien contribution
reserve

At 1 July.(A)
Reclassification of unallocated contributions from othier payables to

reserves
Unallocated contributions received diiring

the year (B) '

Allocation of previously unalloc&ted contributions to member
accourits (C)

At 31 July D={A+B-C}

50. Ejo Heza Member funds

Accumti]atéd-men‘il:_ler funds (allocated member contributions),
Rgserve for unallocated member contributions

-Accumul_afed memher_'-_funds_(mem_h_er confri_but_ions{éavings)

Asat 1 July
‘Member contributions. during the year allocated

Government contributions-during the year ja]]oc_aicd
As at 30 June.

51. Contingent liabilities

Pension Total

2023 2022 2023 2022
Frw'milli  Frw'milli  Fro'milli  Frw'milli
ORS - ans ons ons.
1,964 1,910 1,964 1,910
(0) Q) 0) .
164 172 164 172
(93). {1 (93). {11y
2,036 1,964 2,036 1,964

Ejo Heza
2023 2022
Frw'millions Frw'nmillions
38,730 27.610
103 46
138,835 27,656

Ejo Heza
2023 2022
Erw'millions Frw'millions
27,610 14,458
11,120 11,446
0 1706
38,730, 27,610

The Board is a Jitigant in various cases fot breach of contract afising in the norinal coursé-of business:
The directors are of the view that the Board has high chances of sutcess against the plaintiffs and
none of the. cases 1nd1v1dually of in aggregate would have a significant impact on the. RSSB’s
operations. The directors are confident -that the Board shall receive favourable ruling fiom the

ooutstanding cases. Information on these cases hasnot. been disclosed as the directors consider that the
disclosure of the information could- prejudlce the Board's position, The cases in which the Board i isa.

litigant majorly relate to alleged breach of contracts that the Board entered ‘into and members suing

for théir unsettled benefit claims,

Other t_han_‘_th_e above cases and liability to pay future pensions and other benefits, there were no
‘contingent liabilities at 30 June 2023.
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‘RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

52. Related parties

The Rwanda Social Security Board operates under the Ministry -of Finance and. Ecofiomic Plarining
(MTNECOFIN) In accordance with Law No 45 of 2010 establishing the Rwanda Social Security
Board and determining its mission, organization and functioning, the Prime Minister appoints the
‘directors to-the Board of RSSB. RSSB considers the Government of Rwanda (“GDR”) to be in a
position to exercisé significant influence over it, and therefore regards GoR .and several of its bodies

as related parties for the purpose of the disclosures required by IAS 24 (2009) Related Parties
Disclosures

RSSB has elected to adopt the: exemption available in paragraph 25 of TAS 24, and therefore has not

provided detailed disclosure of'its transactions witht GoR-and its agencies. A summary of the Board’s

{ransactions ‘with the GoR and its bodies is included below:

. RSSB advanced amounts to the City of Kigali, Ministry of Infrastructire and Ministry of
Finance and Economic Planning.. Details of these advances are disclosed in note 33 to these
financial statements,

= RSSB in the normal course of its investmient and treasury operations. durmg the year purchased
treasury bonds and bills as reflected in notes 30 and 31 to'the financial statements. RSSB also
places term deposits and operates current ‘bank accounts with the following institutions which
are related parties;

—  National Bank of Rwanda (BNR) which is the central bank of the Republic of Rwanda.

—  Rwanda Development Bank (BRD) - RSSB held 32.2% of ordinary shares in BRD as at
30 June 2023.

—  Bank of Kigali {BK) —RSSB held 34.3% of ordinary shares-in BK as.at 30 June 2023.

—  Cogebanque SA — RSS8B held 30.6% of ordinary shares in Cogebanque as-at 30 June
2023,

—  Zigama CSS —is a credit and savings bank under the Ministry of Defence (MINADEF).

The transactions described above are both collectively and individually significant fo the financial
statements.

53. Actuarial valuation
a) 'P_ens_iou and ‘occupational hazard scheme
Background and purpose of the actuariol valuation

As previously reported, RSSB therefore commissioned AON Hewitt limited to conduct actuarial
vatuation of the pens:on and occupational hazard scheme as-at 30 June 2020. The purpose’ of an
actuarial valuation is 1o review the long-term financial sustainability. of a scheme. Aon Hewiit Ltd
issugd an actuarial report dated. 16 February 2021,

The actuarial valuation report includes projections over the next 50 years from the valuation date, i.e.

over the period 2020-2021 t0.2069-2070 for:

i)  the financial position of the Scheme on'a "going concern” basis, compating the actual assets
held against a target amount planned to be sufficient to pay the benefits;

ii)  ‘the planning or budgeting of contributions required to bring the assets in line with the planned
target.

iiij the contribution rate required ‘to’ balance contribution income and expend1ture (known as

_ “Breakeven Contribution Rate™)

iv).  income and expenditure

v)  The ‘Balance of Fund’ as.a multiple of expenditure (also known as the ‘Fund Ratio”)

vi)  Dependency ratio and membership profile
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

~ Management and directors have not undertaken an actuarial assessment- for the. period ended . 3'0 June:
2022 and believe the report for the-period ended 30 June 2020 provides reasonable actuarial valuation
to support a review of the. long-term financial sustainability of a scheme.

: The results of the actuarial valuation of the Rwanda Pension and Occupational Hazard Scheme (“the
’ Scheme™) as at 30 June.2020 over are as summarised below:

1) Actuarial | present value of promised retirement benefits for the scheme
: ' The actuarial valuation shows that the pension and occupatlonal hazards. scheme had projected
- actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits of Frw 5,709.2 billion compared to net
3 assets of at'Frw 1,052.3 billion at 30 June 2020, resulting to a. deficit of Frw 4,656.9 billion, as
: ‘shown below:
"'“ © Asat 30 .June
: 2020 Frw’
st _ billions
— Net assets of the scheme (A) ' ' :_ - 1,082.3
Past service liabilities (presént value of benefits promlsed on service) o S
Active members S R _. O (4,640.9)
— Deferred members o o o (7164)
: ‘Pensioners ' I o (351.9)
“Total past sefvice llabliltles |\ ' N h S (5,7092)
1 ‘ “This corresponds to a funding ratio of 18.4%. This compares with a Scheme funding position of
" 54.1% at the previous actuarial valuation as at 30 June 2016 (issued in January 2018).
— The actuarial present value of benefits promised on service as at the valuation date is derived as the
discounted present value of projected. expenditure in respect of .accried benefits, based on’
" projected salary levels:
- Pension branch
For Pension branch of the scheme;, the actuarial valuation shows. thaf the branch had projected
actuarial -present value -of promised retirement benefits. of Frw: 5,673.9 biilion compared to net
B assets of at Frw -789.2 billion at 30 June 2020, resulting to a deficit .of Frw.4,884.7 billion, as
shown below:
~ As at 30 June
2020
: _ . L - _ . Erw’ billiens
. Assets of the scheme (A) _ s 7892
1 Past service liabilities owed o ' '
: (present value of berieflts prom;sed on; serwce) i . ) - .
: Active members. _ o o (4,614.8)
- _Deferre_d members N ' . - e {116.4)
Pensioners _ _ ' _ _'(3_42.7)
Total past service liabilities (B) . ' e, _ L (5673.9)
~ Short fall (A-B) T T T T 84
This: corresponds.to a funding ratio of 13:9%. This compares with a funding ratio of 41.1% at the
‘previous actuarial valuation.
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Occupational hazard branch of the scheme
Feor Occupational hazdrd branch of the scheme, the actvarial valuation shows that the branch had

projected actuarial present value.of promised retirement benefits of Frw 35.3 billion: compared to net

assets of at Frw 263.1 billion at 30 June 2020; resulting to a surplus of Frw 227.8 billion, as shown

below:

As at 30 June 2020

- _ it . _ Frw’ billions

Assets of the scheme as at 30 June 2020 = 263.1
‘Past service liabilities (present value of beneﬁts prom lsed on servu:;i o '

Active members o _ _ _ o - ) {26.1)
Pensmner_s_ : 9.2) |

Total past service liabilities T o R (35.3)

Surplus o T ' o 2278

‘The surplus of the assets relative to the technical provisions is. RWF 227.8bn for the occupational
hazards branch. This corresponds to a finding ratio of 745.5%, compared to funding ratio- of

1,100.9% at the previous actuarial valuation.

The .overall decline in the funding ratio of the scheme éompare'd to previous: actuarial valuation is

attributed to 'a number of changes to the Scheme since the previous actuarial vatuation was completed

as at 30 June 2016; as well as changes in the data, methodology -and assumptions. This has led to

changes in the results since the prevmus actuarial valuation. The main changes to the Scheme during’
the inter-valuation period were outlined in the actuarial report to as follows:

a)  The last pension increase in‘the Scheme was awarded in 2018 where the. Minimum: Perision was:
increased from RWF 5,200 per month (which was applicable from 2002) to. RWF 13,000 per
month and other pension benefi its increased as well.

b)  Prior to 2015, deferred members who bad contributed but did riot make any claim on their

pensions for. a period of 10 years and above would forféit their benefits. However, new: laws.
with effect from 2015 have reversed this. approach and now anyone who contributed and who
‘claims their pension even after a 10-year period, will have their accrued rights preserved.

Funding position excluding deferréd miembers

The overall shortfall of the assets relative to the technica)l ‘provisions excluding deferred members is
RWF 3,940.5 billion for the Scheme. This cotresponds to a funding ratio of 21.1%. The shortfall of
the. assets relative fo the technical provisions excludirig. deferred members is: RWF 4,168.3 billion for

the Pension Brarich. This corresponds toa funding ratio of 15.9%.

2) Contributionis required io bring the assets in line with the planned target (the required future

service contribution rate) '
The required future service contribution rate is the rate of contribution that would normally be
approprlate if the Scheme had no-surplus.or shortfall and the assets were exactly equal to the technical
provisions at the valuation date. The required total contribution rate under the Pension Branch to
cover the cost of benefits. accruing over the next vear, excluding expenses of the Scheme, is 27. 1% of
pensionable salaries (The rate is before any allowance to cover the amortisation of the deficit) as
shown below:
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‘Pension branch

Required contributions for: e %age of pensionable salary
'.Fu‘turé'serv_ice'-.béﬁeﬁts .under-pen'si'on:braﬁ_qh o 4 27.1
Administrative expenses under pension branch o . 03
' o 27.5

This .compates with contributions of approximatély 16.6% of pensionable: salaries at the previous
valuation. It should also be noted that only 6% of pensionable salaries s currently being paid by the
employer and employee jointly. '

The increasé in contribution rate over the valuation period urider the Pension Branch is mainly due to
the change in firiancial assumptions and demographic assumptioris (ageing population and inctease in
life expectancy).

Occupational hazard branch

The required total contribution rate under the Occupational Hazard Branch to cover the cost of
benefits -accriing over the next year, excluding expenses of the Scheme, is 0.2% of pensionable:
salarles (Therate is before any allowance to lower the surplus).

Required contributions for: | %age of pensionable salary
‘Future service benefits under ‘occupational hazard branch i 02
Administrative expenses under .occupa_tl_qnal hazard branich _ _ 0.1

. : i 03

Historically, administrative eéxpenses represent on average 0.4% of pensionable salaries. These
expenses were apportioned between the pension and occupational hazard branches in a 75%/25%
split,

3) The coniribution fate required to balance éontribution income and expenditure (kunown as
‘Breakeven Contribution Rate’)

The. breakeven contribution rate represents the Pay-As-You-Go (PAYG) contribution rate as if the
‘Scheme was uifunded and only considers money-in and money-out without future-investrment returns.
The contribution-weighted average break-even contribution rate over the projection period is-around
23.4% of pensionable salary as compared to the current 6% of contributions.

The projected short tetm and long-term break-even contribution rates required to balance contribution
income with expenditure: on: benefits and expenses each year over.a 50-year projection period are
shown below:

Short-term break-even contribution rates:

Year 2021 ] 2022 [ 2023 2024 | 2025 2026 | 2027 . 2028 | 2029 | 2030
Pension 6.60% | 3.30% | 3:10% ) 3.20% | 3.20% 330%  3.40% | 350% | 3.60% | 4.00%
Occupational L 0.20% | 0.00% | 0.20% | 0.20% | 0.20% | 0.20% | 0.20% | 020% | 020% | 0.20%
hazard . I .

Scheme " 6.80% | 3.50% | 3.30% | 3.40% 1 3.40% | 3.50% | 3.60% ; 3.70% | 3.80% ; 4.20%

Long-term break:even contribution rates:

Year, .t 2021 | 2030 2040 20507 2060 2070
Pension b 660% ) . 400%.1 . 9.70%;  27.80% . .33.10% .  18.70%
Ocoupational hazard .. 0.20% 020% ¢ 020%: . 020%  0.20% 0.20%
‘Scheme 6.80%. 4.20% - 10.00% 28.00% 33.30%: 18.90%
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These compare with the current 8% salary contribution rate of which 6% in respéct of the pension
branch-and 2% s in respect of the occupational hazard branch.

The current contribution rate seems to be sufficient to meet benefits on-a PAYG basis until the year
2038. The lower Break-even contribution rate at the start of the projection period reflects the lower
average service (i.e.-those entitled to a Iump sum instead of the more costly penswn payments) and
part subsidy by the surplus in occupational hazard branch as well as covering pension payments bya
large active population earlier-in the projection. After 2038, the. current confribution rate is no longer
sufficierit-as evidenced by the rising required break-even contribution rate.

The current pension ‘branch contribution rate is expected to be suffi cient t¢ benefits on a PAYG basis
until the year 2036. However, aﬁer 2036, the pension branch break-even contribution rate increases to
35.6% ‘of pensionable salary in- 2056/2057 assuming that there will be fewer active members in the
futuré to bear the cost of benefit payments and ¢xpenses thereby clearly indicating that the current
contribution rate of 6% would not be adequate over the projection period. The occupational hazard
Branch break-even conttibution rate is low for the duration of the projection period to reflect the low
level of benefits currently claimed from this section of the Scheme.

4) Membership profile and 'dependéncy ratio.

Age distribution of active membership as at 30 June 2020 is shown below:

| Age bracket (years) 1620 0 20-30 5 3040 - 40-50 ¢ 50-60 : _>60

“Number of active menibers 20401 206,471 204,903 102,781 42315 ¢ 10,398

The, dependency ratio shows how the membership- profile is expected to change -over time and-is
calculated as a projected ratio of pension beneficiaries. to active members. The dependency ratio is
expected to increase and then stabilize -at around 120% refiecting the Scheme maturing. over thé
projection period and the ageing of the popu]anon as shown below:

Year 20202021 | 2021/2022 [.2030/2031 | 2040/2041 | 2050/2051 | 2060/2061 | 2070/2071
Active members 587,269 | 639456 | 1,007,689 | 1.149.344 1 1013552 | 862,940 | 971,205
Deferred members 925028 | 916993 | 850291 | 763,115 | 647.691 | 504600 | 343,605
Pensioners 38,3380 54,584 [ 102959 | 273.6291 650,594 | 1.040.366 | 1.161,163
Dependency ratio Y% 9%, 9% | 4% ¢ 64% 121% 120%

Active membership is-projected to incréase rapidly initially due to-the high-assumptions for new
entrants and low number of pensioners. It starts-to"fall after year 2050 due to the’ higher number of
pensioners and the slower increase in new entrants.

The deferred members are projected to -decrease over time only considering the existing deferred
iembers ‘without allowing for any new members and a zero-withdrawal rate has been assumed to
reflect the mandatory nature of the Scheme.

The pensioners are projected to inctease gradially over time to reflect the retirement of the existing
active membership, retirement of new entrants in the active membership and retirement of deferred-
members. It also reflects the fact that pensioners are living longer than expected.
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3) Titcome and expenditure.

The long-term projections of future income and expendituré from financial year 202072021 to
financial year 2070/2071 are shown below:

2020/2021 | 2030/2031 | 204072041 | 2050/2051 | 2060/2061 | 2070/2071
_ _ . L Frw' billions e .

Assets at start of the year . 1,052 3,726 9@2'94'. (850) (31,609) '(2?1,85'4)..
Income . - _

Contributions 167 s180 981l 14851 26190 6087
Qutgo . . . N ) e R

Benefits payment . . .| 131 233 LI53 | 5095 10,702 | 13,931
Expenses o ; 12 36 69. 104 183 ) :426_. '
Total outgo I 143 269 1222 5199 10885 14357
Operating surplusi(deficit) 24 ¢ 249 241} (3,714) (8,266) i (8.270)
[nveélmem income 68 | 246 587 {171) (5,483:). (1:7‘659).
Assets at‘the end of the year . 1,144 | 4,221 9,640 (4,735) | (95.358) | (297,783)

Expendlture is projected to be more than income on an annual basis from the year '2043. The projected’

income becomes negative as a result of ‘exhaustion of assets around 2049 assuming the shortfall will

be finance out of horrowing (hence the negative mterest)

‘At branch level, the pension branch has higher income than expendlture until around 2039/2040. After

2040, the projected expenditure ‘is higher than the projected income. This is due to the scheme
demographics of having higher number of beneficiaries many of whom are currently above- normal
retirement ‘age and the effect of the lower contributions than required, The assets held are projected to
reduce to become negative due to increasing benefits payments and expenses.

The occupational hazard branch is projected to have higher income than expenditure over the whole:

projected period.

6) The ‘Balance of Fund’ as a nultiple of expenditure (also known as the ‘Fund Ratio’)

The fund ratioc shows the projected balance of the fund at the start of the year expressed as a multiple
of expenditures on benefits and other administrative costs expected in that year. The projected fund

ratios have been calculated assuming the current contribution rates remain unchanged and allowing:

for future investment returns and are as follows:

— 2021 | 2030 | 2040 | 2050 | 2060 2070
Fund ratio - Pension branch . 571 96 47 (25! 1011 (23.6
Fund ratio — Occupatiopal hazard branch, | 63,7 9681 1614 2783 | 4459 . 5329
Scheme . 74 138 761 (02, (1.5 (189 |

The scheme. is projected to continue to grow for several years and peak in the financial year

2029/2030 after which it is pro;ected to decline-and become insolvent at around financial year
2049/2050. This is because the pension branch is expected in the long term to- pay out pension
benéfits io an incréased number of members while insufficient contributions are being made to pay for
the required benefits.

At ‘branch level, the pension branch is projected to continue to grow and peak at financial year
2023/2024 after which it is. expected ‘to decline until. it becomes insolvent around financial year

2046/2047. The occupational hazard branch has a net surplus and is projected to continue to grow and

remain solvent over the projected period due to the projected low level of benefit payments,
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Methods and key assumptions used
‘Projection methodology

The. model used for projection used as a starting ‘point the clean data and applied the labour force
assumptions for the development of the future contributory population.

The: mode] ‘used was based on a cohort approach using the flow method for generatmg future
generations of pensioners on-a single age basis, i.¢. the. identification of each new pensioner and the
recording of the average period of past pension credits and the average earnings of each cohort. Future
riew entrants were assumed to havé the same average salary as the relevant cohort at the valuation
date but allowing for the:rate of earnings inflation assumption.

The present value of the liabilities was calculated by projecting cashflows over the whole lifetime of
the exjsting membership, L.e. effectively allowing for every existing member to die. For the year on-
year income and expenditure projection, only a snapshot of the cashflows over a projection period- of'
50 years was illustrated.

The same active member pensionable service proportions at the valuation date for the projecti'on'
period were used. Members with more than 15 years service were pro;ected to receive pension
benefits; whereas members with less than 15 years® service were projected to. receive lump sum
benefits,-as per'the rules of the Scheme.

Attive menibers were grouped by age and sex based on who would receive pension and lump sum
benefits based on the: June 2020 membership. data taking into account the megmbers' projected service
at retirement. We. assumed that these groups would apply to future new entrants during the proj ection
period,

‘Each cohort of future new entrants was assumed io follow the same age, gender; salary and marital
status distribution of existing actives for the different -age groups. The distribution of new entrants by
age and sex would reflect that observed at the valuation date and it was assumed that these
distributions remain constant throughout the projection period..

The Projected Unit Method has been used to calculate the _future_ service, contribution rate. This.
«calculation draws on the same assurnptions used for the-technical provisions.

The Projected Unit Méthod (PUM) is one of the common methods used by actuaries to calculate a
contribution rate for a funded scheme. This method ¢alculates the present value of the’ benefits
expected to accrue to members over-a control period (often one year) following the valuation date.

The present value is usually expressed as a percentage ‘of the embers’ pensionable pay. It allows for
projected future increases to pay through to retirement or date of leaving service.
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Key assumpiions made

v Margin for adverse experience

An allowance has been made for adverse ‘experience in both the financial and demographic

‘agsumptions used to calculate technical provisions.

»  Financigl assumptions

A summaty of the key’ economic and expense assumptions. adopted for the valuation of the-
Scheme as at.30 June 2020, together with the tong-term assumptions adopted for the previous:

valuation as at 30 June 2016.-are shown below:

Key assumptions < Valuation as at 30 June 2020

Valuation as at 30- June 2016

Ptice inflation "1 10.0% p.a. for the first year;
6.0% p.a. inthe second year;
5.0% p.a. in the third year and
1 for'the remainder of the

Proj ection period |

-9.0% p.a. for the first year;

“7.0% p.a. in'the second year;
5.0% p.a. in the third year and
for the remainder of the
projection period

Earnings inflation 1 12.0% p.a. for the first year
8.0% pia. in the second year;

1 7.0% p.a. in the third year and
1 for the remainder of the

10.0% p:a. for the first yem
8.0% p.a. in‘the second year;.
6.0% p.a. in the third year and
for the remainder.of the

assumeéd to be-funded in
future each year

______ __.i_projection period | projection period
Investraent return i 6.4% pia. 11.0% pa for the first year;
9.0%:p.a. for the second year;.
“7.0% p.a. in the third yéar and
- for the remainder of the
projection petiod
Pensionsincrease i 1.0% p.a. No allowance
Expenses © 7% of contribution income 10% of contribution income

assumed to be funded.in
~future each vear

The long-term economic assumptions-adopted are the same for all fuiture years of the projection.

*  Démographics

A summary of the-key demographic assumptions adopted for the valyation of the Scheéme as-at
30 June: 2020, together:with the.long-term assumptions adopted for the previous valuation as-at

30 June 2016 are shown below:

a.10-year: pericd. and, continuing at-
2.0% p.a. for the remainder of the
projection period.

Key.assumptions. | Valuation as at 30 June 2020 Valuation as at-30 June 2016
Labour Market- Increase of 12% in the first yeai-of” Increase of 10% in the first year of
(Increase in-Scheme thie projections; reducing to a long- the projections, reducing to'a long-
membership) ' i térm-assomption of 2.0%;a year over term assumption of 2.5% a year

overa t0-year perlod and
continuing at 2.5% p.a. for the
rémainder of the projection period.

Mortaﬁtj/ assumptions 't Rwanda Moiftality Table; 20] 2- ?.OI 6
scaled by 60%; with an allowance for
future annual improvements of 0.8%
for males and 1% for females

Rwanda Mortality Table; 2012-
2016; with an altowance for future

i annual improvements of 1.25% for

males-and 1.5% for females

Withdrawal Rates | Same as last valuation”

No allowance was made for early
withdrawal from-active service.
However, an implicitallowdnce

i was captured in the labour market.

assumption.
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Key assumptions | Valuation as at 30 June 2020 1 Valuation as at 30 ._lune':201 6
: Invalidity Rates ~ { Arate of 0.01% for active members | A rate of 0.01% for active members
- (Pension Branch) | between ages:20 and 64 - i between ages 20 and 60
: Incapacity Rates. Same.as last valuation ' Parmahentglncapacity Rate of
' {Qccupational Hazards 1 0.005% for both males.and females.
Branch) ' between the ages of 20 and 60.

Assumed that 5% of futare
permanent incapacity will be full
1 incapacity (based on 100%
incapacity rate)-and 95% will be
partial incapicity based on'a 40%
+ incapdgcity rafe).

Workers Medical Benefits | An uplift of 30% to.the projected 1 An uplift of 33% to the. pmjected
i {Occupational Hazards | Permaneit Incapacity expenditure in | Permanent: Incapacity expendlture
Branch) order to make an allowange forthe | in order to-make an allowarice for
= Workers Medical Benefits. .| the Workers Medical Benefits,
; Constant Cate Supplement : No allowance | No allowance
{Pension Branch and
sy Occupational Hazards
:‘ Brianch) . . » .
Retirement Rates | Same as last valvation I Non-Uniformed members retire at
age 60 and that Uniformed

mernbers retive at age 50.

No allowarice has been made for

L - | eatly retitements as the experience
s ¢ indicatéd that few such benefits are
: ' _ _ . | paid, . _
—_— Family Statistics — 76% of malé mesmbers and. 62% of 80%.of male members and’ 65% af
: proportion married female members-are married at all. female members are mariied at all
. _ ages _ | apes,
f — Fariily Statistics — Age A 4-year age dlfference between A 4-year age dtfference between
i differéence meribers. and spouses has been: members.and spouses has been.

_ adopted, with husbands older than adopted, with husbarnds oldés than
wives, with a 27-year age difference: | wives, witha 32-yearage

S between male parents and children difference between male parents.
r '. and a 23-year age difference between | and children and a 28-yearage
f ' | female parerits and children. 1 difference between female parénts
: = . . ) . and children.
; Family Statistics — Same as last valuation " | Unmarried members have two
MNumber of dependants { dependents; that is, both parents,

and that married members have
three dependénts; a spouse and two
deperident children.

— | We have not made any allowances
| for remartiage rates and we have
assumed that orphan benefits cease

. at-age 25.
s Deferred members
- “The previous valuation results did not:allow for deferred members who left active employment
! before July 1994. The previous actuary was provided with 641,018 deferred member records, of
: which 208,754 last contributed before July 1994, At the valuation date; all the deferred members
L even those prior to 1994 have been included.
""5_
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»  Investment returins

In'determining the investment réturn assumption, an allowance for the ‘benchmark allocation set out in
the Fund’s Investment Policy (third edition) and.expected returns on each asset class has.been made.
A long term expected investment return of 6. 4% per annum was obtairied.

‘The previous valuation constructed the investment return assumptton by addinga margin to the price:
inflation assumption whereby a long-term margin of plus 2. 0% p.a. in addition to. price inflation was
used to get an investment réturn assumption of 11% p:a. for the first year, 9% p.a. for the second year,
7% psa. in the third year and for the remainder of the projection period.

The net efféctive rate in séivice would be -0.6% in the long term which is lower than the previous
valuation,

»  Earnings inflation
The previous valuation assumed that the rate .of earmngs inflation to be 10.0% p.a. for the first year;
8.0% p.a. for the second vear; 6. 0% p.a. for the third year; and femaining at 6:0% p.a: for the

remainder of the projection period. This was equivalent to the price inflation assumption plus a 1.0%.
p-a. inargin.

The ‘current valuanon assumes that the rate of earnings inflation to be 12.0% p.a. for the first year;
8.0% pa. for the second year; 7.0% p.a. for the third year; and remaining at 7.0% p.a. for the
remainder of the projection penod This is equivalent to the price inflation assumption plus a 2.0%
p.a. margin. The higher margin was. derived based on'the data analysis.

v Pension increase

The:current valuation makes an allowance of 1% per annum for any increases in-benefit payments or
minimum pensions as such increases. are provided on a discretionary basis based on our analysis of
past iricreases and following a requést by RSSB. '

The previous valuation did not include any allowance for periodic increases to benefit payments.
*  FExpenses

The expense assumption is based on our findings from the Annual Report & Accounts during the
inter-valuation period. The actuarial assumption is 7% p.a. of contribution income for the projection
period.

This compares to-the previous actuarial valuation expense assumption of 10% a year of ‘contribution
income for the projection period which reflected higher expenses recorded at that time.

v Labour market

The ‘current valuation assumes that the active membership of the Scheme increases by 12% in the first
year reducing to-a long term assumiption of:2.0% over a 10-year period (i.e. using a declining scale.
from 12% to 2% at the end of the 10 years); and coritinuing at. 2.0% for the remainder of the
projection period. The long-term assumption reflects the combined effect of increases in'the employed
population and increases:in coverage that might be expected during the period.

The. previous valuation assumed that the active membership of the. Scheme increases by 10% in the
first year reducing to a long-term assumption of 2.5% over a 10-year period; and continuing at 2.5%
for the remainder of the projection period.

The short-term assumptions adopted reflect the high numbers of new entrants to the: Scheme in recent:
yyears. The long-term assumption reflects. the: combined effect of increases in the total population, total
employed population-and increases in the coverage of the Scheme.

It is assumed that these high levels will not continue over the longer-term as' Rwanda. is the most
densely. populated country in East Africa (and Africa); and so it is likely that the population growth
will begin to plateau during the projection period. However, it is expected that the formal sector-will
expand during the prq;ectmn period; and thereforé creating more gradual increase:¢ach year.

144




RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
»  Mortality-

The current valuation assumes mottalify ¢xperience in line- with the ‘Rwanda Mortality: Table;
2012-2016’ scaled by 60%. with an allowance for future annual improvements of 0.8% for males
and 1.0% for females. A 60-year old male pensmner is assumed on average, to live to-age 84.4
years-and under a 60-year old female pensioner:is assumed, on average, to live to age 85.4 years,

The previous. valuation assumed mortality experience in line with the *“Rwanda Mortality. Table;
— -2012-2016" with an allowance for future annual improvements. of 1.25% for males and 1.5% for
femnales. The new Rwanda specific mortality table had been constructed using RSSB data.

= Incapacity rates

The incapacity rates reflect the proportions .of active, deferred and pensioner members. who
ot become eligible to (start 10) receive Incapacity. Benefits at each age as‘a result of occupational
: disease or accident. The vafuation assumes-an Incapacity Rate of 0.06% for both: males and
- females between the ages of 20 and 60 based on a 10-year analysis of annual claim payments.
; The previous valuation assumed a permanent incapacity rate of 0.005% for both males -and
females between ages of 20 and. 60.
. The différence comes from the fact that all incapacity claims were considered instead of fecusing
: only on permanent incapacity since the data was relatively scarce for such benefits and unlikely
to'be credible.

b) Medical scheme

Background and purpose of the actuarial valuation

—‘ The purpose of an actuarial valuation is to review the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme.
RSSB therefore commissioned Zaniara Actuaries, Administrators and Consultants Limited to conduct
actuarial valuation of the medical benéfits insurance scheme as at 30 June 2020. Zamara Actuaries,

" Administrators and Consultants Limited have issued an actuarial report dated 03 February 2021.

" Management and directors have not undertaken an actuarial assessment for-the period ended. 30 June

_ 2021 and believe the report for the period ended 30 June 2020 pr0v1des reasonable actuarial valuation

to support a review of the long-term financial sustainability of a scheme.
The core basis projéctions over the next 40 years from the valuation: date, i.e. over the period 2020--

o 2021 to.2039-2040 is as shown below:

Fingncial year Total Population Total Contribution Total Benefit | Accumulated
Size Income (Frw’ Expenditure (Frw’ _ Find
: millions} millions) (Frvw® millions)

] . {20190020 T B (57 A 31335 ] T8 356,025

. 303072031 ' 171473 o 36,5991 TN R 339,950
202172022 R N 57 ST R 50,500 Y YR 386,295

B 03372023 R [T B eS0T 41,5507 434383

- 203373084 Tesost ¢ T T eg A b 260 483,345

_ 202472025 TTTI95986 | HEORE LT seaai T 532,408

Soas0se | aevaad T e 65714 379781
303673007 Thoe496. | 82.2%6 T 623,668
. 20372028 ' T35 T 86,980 90,605 661492

30382039 35,060 TSR3S0 06,506 686,960

2026/2030 _ 227317 " 96,743 | 136360 1 704,788

_ 203072031 TUEEREes T T eneez 150317 700,537

B 303172032 F 342708 06660 179,056 | 670,333

= 303272058 T EseEs T 622 713,898 605,471

303375054 TTTaseasy T 116480 | 356.327 | T E94,599
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Financial year " Total Population Size Total Contribution, Fotal Benefit Accumulated

Income {Frw" millions) Expenditure (Frw" Fund

_ millions) | {Frw" millions)
203472035 i 268,258 121,228 : 308,076, 324,733
203512036 ki 125,769 TEFER T T30
0362037 T Tagiass 1 130,167 9073 | 261,261
203772038 : ThTEE T 134228 544469 | (691,770)
30382039 T T a08542 137573 | 661,589 1,236,220)
0395030 3167784 TI4T350° T g05,605 (1523.116)

The projected fund will be depleted by 30 June 2036 with the deficit growing exponentially until the end of
the projected period. )

For the first seven years of the ‘projection period, annual contributions are expected to exceed annual
.¢laims, however, after this, annual claims are expected'to exceed annual contributions as the assumed rate
of claims escalatlon exceeds the rate of salaty growth. For the year ending 30 June 2027, fotal claims are:
expected to. represent 93.7% of total gross contributions: income before allowing for expenses of the:
scheme. In the following year ending 30 June 2028, the total claims are projected to exceed total gross.
contributions-and the utilisation ratio is. 104.2%

From the year ending 30 June 2028 to 30 June 2030, the projected investment income will be sufficient to
meet the shortfall caused by increasing claim costs as well as projected expenses of the scheme.

After the year ending 30 June 2030, net cashflows are projected to be negative, This differs from. the
pro;ectlon as at 30 June 2016 where the scheme was projected to remain in a positive cashflow position for
55 years in the future. This différence is mainly attributable to the worse than ‘expected. claims escalation
that resulted from an upward revision of tariffs. Claims managemerit solutions are essential to improving.
the long term health of the scheme.

Methodology and key assumptions used
Methodology

The projection model used considered the evolution of the:contributing: members, which forms the basis for
projecting the future primary cashflows of the scheme. The primary cashflows were. then used to model the.
future retained funds of the scheme, by considering projections of future investment réturns-and expenses.

The membership of the scheme has been segregated into émployees from the public secior, employees from
the private-sector and retirees in assessing the future evolution of the scheme. The bases used for the
various. pro_]ecnons have been arrived 4t as a result of detailed analysis-on data and experience over the past
five years as this is most likely to reflect future expetience. However, long term expectatlons based di
regional and global benchmarking as well as macro-economic factors have been used in determining the
final set-of assumptions for these projections.

Key assumptions used
Below is a sumimary .of the key:assumptions used in preparing these projections:

Demographics
Assumptin _ _ ! Value used in valuation-as at 30 June-2020
Membership growth rate - ' 2.60% '
New entrants” ptoportion {per age) ' " Based on data - distributing the: ne“ ‘entrants in a given year mto a

. . . e suitablc age

Mortality rates _ ' Rwanda Moitality. Table - . May 2017
Retirementrates. . _ o I Stepped retirement rates.for, different age groups
Salary growth rate public. _ _ 5.90%
Salary srowth rate private ' 440% .
Pension gmwth rate S 7.20%.

"Workmg p(:pu]atmn coritribution rate.- 2 15.0% .gﬁflgg_.._sw sa].ir)
Pensionsrs contribution rate - ) ‘| 7.5% of pension

146



RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

NOTES.TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Economic

{ Assumption “Value used in valuation-as at 30.June 2020
Inflation o 10% in the first year, 6% in the second year and 5%

. _ . __i from year 3 onw:ards

Investment rate of return ' o - 8.9%
Other income ' ' - 0.43%-of conitributions
Administrative expenses . 12'_'% of contributions
Statutory CBHI conteibutions T 10% of contribution s

Claiims
Assumption _ o Value used in valuation as at 30 June 2020
‘Cost Component ' Annual Claims escalation rate | Average Cost per Affiliate

iy : - S _ Member {Erw)

Consultation o 98 _ 22,867
Laboratory tests _ ;! _ 9.7% ' 36,620
Medical imaging _ 210% - 13513
'Hospitalization ' - 140% & 6242
Procedures.and materials - F - 205% 29,710
Other consumables ' 29% i 2,650
Medicines R 10.8% . 10,535
Pharmacy i 5.3% P 40,171

©) Maternity Leave.
Benefit Actuarial Valuation

Overview of the maternity leave benefit scheme

The Mateinity Leave benefits Scheme (MLBS) was established by Law 003/2016 of
30/03/2016 Establishing and Governing Maternity’ Leave benefits Scheme. Under the law, the
scheme, the employer and employee each contribute 0.3% amounting to 0.6% of the employee’s
salary. Claims ate made and paid as and when maternity leave is taken.

Background and purpose of the actuarial valuation

The Board commissioned an actuarial valuation of the Maternity Leave benefit scheme MLBS) The
actuarial valuation which was performed by Muhanna and: Co. Actuaries AND Consuliants on behalf
of the Board and-considers data up to 30 June 2022 was issued on 11 May 2023.

The actuarial calculations were carried out in accordance with Interriational Accounting Standard 19 (
IAS 19). The projections. were carried out over the next 50 years ( the fast year being 2072) in linie
with the Triternational Labour Association and International Labour Office Guidelines for. short term
benefits.

Su mmary results of the actuarial assessment

Base Scenavio
Pay As You Rate.
The Pay as You Go Rate (PAYG) or cost raté was 0.15%: in. 2022 and was projected .at-0.29 of total

salaries in the year 2072. The PAYG rate is the ratio of iotal expenditure to total salaries in a
_particular year, It is the contribution rate needed 1o finance. the expenditure on benefits and

administrative expenses throughout the year witheut producing any surplus or deficit.
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General Average Premium.

The General Average Premium (GAF) was estimated at0.2% of salaries. This is the contribution rate
needed so that the future contribution income and investment return will be enough to exactly cover
the future expected exp_endl_ture_s of the scheme -over the prajected period. The current contribution
ratio‘is 0.6% of total salaries based on the current legal framework.

Reserive Fatio

‘The projectéd reserve ratio is projected to 160 in 2072. The reserve ratio is defined as the ratio of the

total accumulated fund(reserve) at the end of the year to total expenditure, during the year. Hence this
reflects a projected healthy reserve ratio.

Canclusion

‘Therefore, based on the results under the base scenario, the MLBS is in a healthy financial position.

The level of the current contribution rate is adequate to cover the matemity leave benefit as well as the
expenses needed to operate the scheme. A sensitivity analysis is summarised under the section Risks
and Sensitivity Analysis. '

‘Methodology and key assumptions-used

Methodology

The methodology used for the Actuarial Valuation of the MLBS involved the. projection of the income
and .outgo-of the MLBS into the future, on an open group basis, and examining the sufﬁc1ency of the
current reserves and expected future income to meet current and future liabilities. The actuarial
praj ections ‘were based on the current legal ptovisions: of the MLBS, the data at the starting point for
the projections (30 June 2022) and on‘thé assumptionis regarding future demographic and economic:
experience, '

Open group demographic and cash-flow projections allow for future evitrants, as well as exits, from
the scheme agross all projection years. Actuarial Valvations for benefits under-a Social Insurance
§cheme are carried out on an Qpen Group Basis over.a long-time horizon as this directly recognises:
the compulsory nature of future participation, .the nature of promised benefits and the unlikely
possibility of winding up a social security arrangement. The methodology adopted was.in line with
the Interhational Standard of Actuarial Practice (ISAP) 2 practice. (paragraph 2.4)- for the Financial
Analysis of Social Security Programs, which states that for pay-as-you-go or partially -funded
schemes, the analysis stiould use an open-group methodology, under which centributions and benefits
of both current and future participants-are considered..

The actuarial calculations were petformed in ling with the International A_ccounting_Standard 19-(1AS.
19).

The base.year of the. projections is 2022 and the reference ‘date (or valuation date) was the 30th June
2022. The projections were cairied out for the next 30 years (in line with the relevant International
Actuarial Association and Intetnational Labour-Office guidelines. for short-term benefits) — that is the.

'Ialst year of the projection is set to be 2072.

The revenue of the MLBS includes both contributions and investment. income. For each projected
year, total contributions were derwecl from the active members' salaries and the- contribution rate-
prescribed by the Law for the MLBS. Investment income is calculated on the basis of assumptions on
rates of return oni the MLBS investments,

The MLBS outgo includes the maternity leave benefits paid out, which are projected using
assumptions based on the fertility rates, the mermbers' eligibility for the maternity leave benefit, the

projected salaries and the expected duration. of the benefit. In addition, the MLBS outgo inciudes the

cost of administering the scheme.

In.order to carry out the projections, the demographic and financial information relating to MLBS'
members as at the valuation date (30 June 2022) was used.
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‘The actuarial model projected the numbers of males and fémales separately because of the different

demographics and specificities of these groups. The acétive ‘population for males was used for the
contribition income purposes. On the other hand, the active population for fentales is used for both

the contribution income and the benefit outgo projections.

The methodology applied is:summarised below.

MLBS Contribution income
Contiibution income = MLBS -active Population X. Projéct Salaries X Contribution. rate

‘The assumptions applied in projecting the MBLS active population and the Projectéd Salaries -are

summarised in the tables under key demographic assumptions-and key financial assumptions below.

MLBS Benefit Expenditure

'MLBS Benefit. Expendlture = Beneficiaries Population X Projected Salaries X Benefit duration

The assumptions applied in projecting the Beneficiaries Population, the Projected Salaries and the
benefit duration are summarised in the fables under key demographic assumptions and key financial
assumptions below.

Assumptions

Assumptions were made. about -each factor that was applied in estimating the cashflows. The-
assumptions included statistical (demographic) and financial (economic) assumptions; The
assumptions took into consideration the recent experience of the MLBS, the country’s demographic

.and-econoiic outlook, as well as the shoit- and long-term trends.

Summary of 'd'emograpliic assumpftions

Key assumptions

Key Highlights

Rwanda Population
Growth

‘According to the United Nation projections as well as the 5th Population and
Housing Census 2022, the papulation of Rwanda.is growing by approximately 2. 3%
‘Over the next 10-15 years, the growth rate is expected to reduce t0.2.0% and 1.0% in
the longer térm (2060+). The expected population growth as well as the expected
changes in age structures were taken info account when setting the assumptions for
the growth of the population insared under the MLES.

Labour Force and

The expected growih and compaosition.of the MLB S_membjership.i_s'directly'iinked to
the population structure and more importantly to the labour force and employed
population, The current [abour force participation rate is 56% and the MLBS
coverage rate-was estimated at 15% of the labour force and 8.5% of the working age
population, It was-assumed that the ML.BS membership will grow -and therefore the.
coverage rate will increase.

Employment
Mortality R_a_tes-
{Active Members}

The mortality rates used for the valuation were based on the Rwanda Mortaiity Table
rates. Given these rates, along with statistics for the tife expectancy in Rwanda and
considering the. group of members covered by the MLBS, we adjusted the standard
table ratés to reflect'the scheme mortality’ expenence “The life expectancies at age 20
and at age 60 derived from the mortality-ratés assumed were as follows:

Life Expectancy ‘Males Females

2022

—_— At age 20 55.0 (age 75.0) 58.0 (age 78.0)
~  _AtageG0. 18.0 (age 78.0) 21.0 {age.81.0)
2052+

—  Atage20 58.0(age 78.0) 61.0 (age 81.0)
—  Atage60 20.0 (age 80) 22.0 {age 82.0)

Fertility Rates

The current total feitifity rate in Rwanda is 3.6:children per woman and.
the general fertility rate in vear 2022 was equal to 106.9 births per 1,000
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Key assumptions

Key Highlights

women, The -expefience of the MLBS shows significantly lower number of births
and Tertility rates.

We considered the age specific fertility rates of Rwanda, but initially: reduced the
rates to reflect the lower expeﬁence-of'ihe scheme as summarised below

— Ages 15-19: 3 births per 1000 women increasing to 3 births in the long-terim;

—  Ages20-24; 13 births per-1000 women increasing to 33 births in the long-term;
—  Ages 25-29; 18 births per 1000 worhen increasing to 40 births in'the long-term;
—  Ages 30-34: 26 births per 1000 wormen incréasing to 50 births inithe long-term;
- Ages 35-39: 17 births per- 1000 women inctéasing to 36 births in the long-term
—  Ages 40-44: § births per 1000 women increasing to 25 births in the long-term.

The rates above aré lower when compared to the fertility rates of the country.
Adjustments were: deemed necessary in order 1o reftect the lower experience of the
scheme. In the long-term, we assumed that the rates increase in order to refléct that
more women are expected to claim for this benefit and eventually the. scheme
feitility rate to be'more consistent to the country experience..

Marriage rates

According to the Rwande Demographic Health Survey (DHS) 2019/2020, 49% of
men and 51% ofwo_men-in_’sz_m:da'are-mat;ried. Forthe purposes of this

valuation we were interested in the population at working ages-and therefore ignored
the rates before the age of 15 and after 60. The age-related marriage rates of the
DHS report as summarised below. were used.

Age Marriage rates Marr_iage rates
Male ' Female
20-35 25% 30%
25-30 -50% 655%
30-35 _80% 75%
35-40 90%. 80%
40-45 90% 85%
45-50 90% 85%
50-55 90% 85%
55-60 90%  185%
60+ 90% 83%
Growth  rates  of | Males

active members,

I_'niti._al_ _'_growth rate of 10.0% per year reducing to 2.0% over the next 10 years (2023
2032). '

The growth rate was then assumed to gradually reduce to 1.0%.(2033-2042). In the
loriger-tefm the growth rate of active members was assumed to be 0.5% per yeat:

Females _
Initial growth rate of 13.0% per year reducing to2.0% over the next 10 years {2023--

(2032),
“The growth rate is then assumed to gradually tedace to 1.0% {2033-2042), In the .
Tonger-term, the growth rate is assumed to be §.5% per year.

The short-term assumptions reflect the recent high numbers of new entrants to the
MLBS. The long-term assumptions reflect the populatlon .growth, the increases to
the. employed population. as well as the expected extension of coverage.
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Key assumptions

. Key Highlights

Age gender
distribition -of new
entrants

‘The number of active members of the MLBS was projected from one year to the
next, based-on the number of néw-entrants and exits for each year and the number’ of

memibers surviving from previous years. A distribution of new entrants by age group
is ‘essenfial in. order to-allocate the new: entrants expected to enter the. scheme each

year

“The new-active members joining the MLBS follow the distribution of those MLBS

mesnbers who joined over-the last 2 years. We also t:onmdered the joining pattern of
all members, irrespective of the year of joining: The pattern was similar and based
on the 2-year average joining age of members was assumed at 30.

The age-related ratés used are summarised below.

Age ‘New entrants New entrants
Male Female
20.25 29.5% 34.0%
25-30 27.0% 28.0%
30-35 16.5%. 15.5%:
35-40 10,0% 8.5%-
40-45 7.0% 5.5%
45-50 5.0% 3.5%.
50-55 2.5% 2.5%
55+ 2.5% 2.5%
Total - 109% 0%

Exit rates.

Age’ Exit rates Exit rates.
Male Female
(20 40.0% 40.0%
21 40.0% | 40.0%
22 .40.0% | 35.0%
23 40.0% 35.0%.
24 35.0% 35.0%
25 30.0% 30.0%
1 26 25.0% 25.0%
27 25.0% 25:0%
28 25.0% 23.0%.
29 20.0% 20.0%
30 20.0% 20.0%.
31 20,0% 28:0%.
32 18.0% 17.0%
33 17.0% 16.0%
34, 17.0% 15.0%.

The probabilities of exits were-based on the analysis of the data carried out for the
movements. in the active: membership .over the last 4 years (2018 2022). In
particular, the active members in twe consecutive years (2018/2019, 2019/2020,.
2020/2021 -and 2021/2022) were compared and- we isolated' the cases-who, -even
though ‘they contributed in one year; they were not present in ‘the following year.

These cases ‘were- assumed to have left the MLBS and. therefore were used to
calculate the exit rates. The exit rates were calculated for individual age groups and
separately for ales and females. The projected exit rates for males. and-females. are -

-presented in the table below.
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Key assumptions. Key Highilights
[REE 17.0% 15.0%
36 17.0% 15.0%
37 17.0% 15:0%
38 17.0% 14,0%
39 16.0% 14.,0%
40 16.0%: 14.0%
41 16:0% 14.0%
42 16.0% 14.0%
43 16.0% 15.0%
44 16:0% 15.0%
45 16.0%. 16.0%
46 16.0% 1 17.0%
47 16.0% 17.0%
48 16.0% 17.0%
49 17.0% 17.0%
50 18.0% 17.0%
51 18.0% 17.0%
52 18.0% 17.0%
53 18.0% 17.0%
54 18.0% 17.0%
55 19.0%. 18.0%
56 19.0% 18.0%
57 20.0% 19.0%
58 20.0% 19.0%
59 30% 20.0%
60-64 25.0% 25.0%.
65+ 30.0% 30.0%

Summary of financial assumptions

Key financial assumptions

Economic Growth

Over the Iast five years {2018-2022), real GDP in¢reased by 6.4% on
average. In year 2022, the Natiorial Institute of Statistics of Rwanda (NISR)
shows-a real GDP growth of 8.9%,

Estimates of the International Monetary Fund show that real GDP growth

‘will be approximately 7.0%-7.5% over the next 2-3 years and stabilise.to.

6% after yeat 2026, Based on the recerit growth rates and the short-term
expectations, it- was.assumed that real GDP growth will be 7.5% over the next
years.and.gradually fall to 6.0% after vear 2023,

Investment return

70% per annum..
This thvestmént Feturn assumption is net of all investment transaction

expenses, This assumption was:based on the investment rates of returis of”

the MLBS over the last 3'yéars, as well as on the asset aflocation and the

Inﬂati(')n rate

expectation of returas of asset classes.
5.0%.per annom {long-term assumption)

Over the last 5 years the inflation rate was equal t0.3.6% by fiscal year and

4.4% by calenddr year. If we consider a shorter period, then the average
inflation rate (fiscal year).over the last 3 years was equal to 5%.

According to estimates from the International Monstary Fund, the forecast
inflation raté in Rwanda by caleéndar year would gradually fall to 5.0% in year
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Key financial assumptions

2024 and would remain flat until year 2027.

The estimates for inflation by fiscal year were taken from the Nationai Bank
of Rwanda. The assumption-on inflation was in line with the Tecent inflation
ratés experiended, as well ss.the estimates. of the International Monetary Fund
(IMF) for Rwanda

Salary increases 6.0% a year for the géneral salary increases _(inflat:io'n 4+ generdl increases)
plus Q_25%-1.0% for mefit/promotion satary increases, or 'Salary Scales'.

The projected salary scales are summarised below.

Age Group Males { Females
20-24 1.00% 1.00%.
25 --29 1.00% 0.75%
30- 34 0.75% 10.75%
35-39 0.5% 0.5%
40- - 44 0.25% 0.25%
45-49 0.25% 0.25%
50+ 0% 0%
Administrative expenses The average administration expenses. (including staff costs) over the last 3-4

years. We have assumed that administration expenses will be equal 10°5.0%.0f
contribution income.

Density of Contributions “The:density of contributions is defined to bethe proportion of the year during.

which participants pay contributions to the scheme. The analysis of the data
.Supports the assumption of a density equal to 65% based on recent
experience. '

Starting  value of MLBS | Frw 38.6 billion
reserve.

Risks and sensitivity analysis

The results of the base scenario whose. assumpttons are summarised: in-the preceding sections were
tested against changes {0 the main assumptions i.e investment return, salary increases, future scheme
participation.-administration expenses and fertility rates:

Investment return

The effect of changes to the investment retum assumption (/- 2 percentage units) was investigated;
all other assumptions were left unchanged to view the impact of these changes in isolation. A lower
long-term investment return of 5.0% p.a. was assumed under one: scenario-and a higher long-term

investment return.of'9.0% p.a. in another scenario.

Salary iricrease/ Inflation

The long-teit genéral salary increase (inflation plus productivity) was assumed to be 6.0% (5. 0% +
1.0%). In addition, salaries were assumed to increase by age-related promotional scales ranging
between 0.25% and 1.0%. For sensitivity testing purposes, two sensitivity scenarios wete faken under
which we assuried that the inflation rate is 1._perb‘enta'g'e. unit lower and higher, respectively.

Lower scheme participation

The demographic and financial results were tested against the change in the assumption: for the.growth
of the MLBS active contributors” population. We examined the financial position of the scheme if the
growth rate of the active members was lower than under the BASE Scenario. Under this scenario, the
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niimber of ¢ontributors. is assumed to0 increase by 6%-8% in the short-term and gradually reduce to
0.5% growth after 20 years. In the mediuni-term' (year 2042+) the ‘population ‘of centributors was
assumed to remain sfable.

Higher fertility fates

Fertility rates. were assumed to be higher in the short ferm as well as in the long-term.. the initial
fertility rate was-assumed to increase from 0.4 to 0.6 and the general fertility rate from 17 live births
to 25. In the long-term, theése were assumed to increase further.

Administration expenses
Under one scenatio, it was assumed that the administration expenses rate is lower by 2 percenfage
units i.e. 3% .of contribution income. Under another scenario, the administration expenses rate was

assumed to be higher than higher by 2 perceritage units i.e. 7% of cantribution income;

Suinmary of results from.the sensitivity analysis conipared to base scenario.

Scenario description General Average | Reserve ratio in'20 | Reserve ratio in.
Premium (GAP) rate | years 40 years (2062)
{2042)
Base results 0:2% 95.1 158.8

Effect of varied assumptions:

Investment Return: 5.0% p.a. 0.2% 747 95,0
Investment Return: 9.0% p.a. 0.2% 122.1 273.7
| Inflation 4.0% p.a, 0.19% 107.5 208:1

Inflation 6.0% p:a 0.205% -84.5 122.8
Lower Growth of Active Members 1 0.22% 938 165.2
Higher Fertility Rates 0.25% 73.5 121.6
Lower Administration Costs 0.19% 104.0 169.8
Higher Administration Costs 0.21% 87.4 148.7

54. Events after the reporting period

There are no reportable subsequent events.

55. Financial risk management:
The Board has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= Marke_t risk,

. Liquidity risk,

L] Credit risk, and

= Capital management risk

Included below is information about the Board’s exposure to each of the above tisks, the Board’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managmg the risks and the Board’s management
of capital.

Rlsk..managem"ent:framework

The Board's Board of Directors has éverall résponsibility for the establishment. and oversight of the
Board’s risk managemeiit:framework. The Board has establishéd an Audit'and Risk Committee, and
the Risk Department, which are responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management

policies in their specified areas. All Board committees have non-executive members and report
regularly to the Board of Directors on their activities,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The Board’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks*faced by the:
‘Board, to set appropriate risk:limits and conirols, and o monitos risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly 1o reflect changes in market conditions,
products and services offered. The Board through its training and management standards and
procedures,. aims to develop a disciplined and constructive- control environient;, in which all
employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board’s. Audit and Risk -Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Board’s
risk management pollcles and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the tisk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Board. The Audit and Risk Committee is assisted in
these functions by Internal Auditand Risk functions.

Internal Audit undertakes: both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit and Risk Committee

a)  Market risk.

Market risk is- the risk that changes in market prices, such as investment. prices, interest rates and
foreign exchange rates. will -affect the Board's iricomé or the value of its holdings of financial.
instruments. The objectwe of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within the acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on investment.

Management of market risks

Market risk arises from a decrease in the market value of a portfolio of financial instruments caused
by adverse movements in the market variables such as equity, bonds and property prices, currency
exchange rates and interest rates.

The:Board grants authority to-take on market risk exposure to the Management Investmernt Committee
(MIC). This committee manages. this risk through the guidelines set out in the Board’s investment
policy.

Equity price risk

The Board is exposed to equity securities price risk through its investments in quoted and unquoted_
shares. The Board’s Investment committee diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is
done in accordance with the guidelines set out-in the Board’s investment policy. :All shares held by the
Board are either quoted on Rwanda Stock Exchange and Nairobi Securities Exchanges of unquoted.
The table below. shows the effect of share price sensitivity on the surplus for the year based on the
share price volatility as at 30 June 2023;

‘Type of Investment Changfe ' m‘-)_s_ha're_ Effect on surplus. Effect on
- price % surplus
Pension Medical

2023 2023

Frw'million Frw'million

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss +-10% 18,063 1,307
- 2022 2022

Frw'million. Frw'miillion

Equity investments at fair value through profif or [oss +-9% 14,385 1,074

Property price risk

The Board is expesed to property price risk through its investments. in real estate properties. The
Board’s Investmient committee diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is dorie in
accordance with the guidélines set ‘out in the Board’s investment policy. The Board last undertook a
valuation of its investment property as-at 30 June 2022 and adopted valuations of investment and
admitistrative: ‘properties:as at 30 June 2022 and maintained as at 30 June 2023.
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The table below shows. the effect of property price sensitivity on the surplus for the year;

Change in

property price % Effect on surplus  Effect on surplus

Pension Medical

2022 2022

Frw’million Frw’million

Investment property +/-10%. 21,759 1,253
2022 2022

Frw Frw

Investinent property. +-9% 19,357 1,128

Currency risk

The Boeard is expased to currency tisk ‘through' transactions. in foreign currencies. The Board
transactional ‘exposures. gwe tise to foreign currency’ gains and losses that are recognised in the
statement of compreéhensive income. In respect of monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies,
the Board ensures that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level. Monitoring.of foreign currency
fluctuations is done through the Investment Committee. The Board operates wholly within Rwanda.
and its assets and liabilities are. reported in Rwanda Francs, although it maintains some of its -assets
and trades. with banks in foreign currencies,
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

‘NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Board if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises: principally from the Board’s loans and advances, trade.
and other receivables, deposits with commermal banks and investments in government and corporate bonds.
For risk management reporting purposes, tlie Board considers all elemerits of credit fisk exposure such as
individual obligator default risk, country-and sector risk.

For risk management purposes; .credit risk arising on trading securities is managed. independently, but
reported as a component of market risk exposure.

Management of credit risk

‘The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the managemeént of credit risk to fts Management
Investment Committee, The Investments Department is responsible for oversight of the Board’s credit risk,
including:

Ll Formulating credit policies, covering collateral requirements and credit-assessments; risk grading and
reportmg Documentary, legal procedures and compliance with: regulatory and stdtutory requirements
is done in consuitation with:the Board's Legal and Compllance Departmient.

. Establishing the authorisation structure for-the approval and reriewal of credit facilities. Anthorisation
Tlimits are. allocated to the Management Investment Committee: Larger facilities require approval by
the Board of Directors as appropriate.

s Reviewing compliance of investment mix with agreed exposure limits, including those for selected
industries, country risk -and product types. The Board’s Investment Commitiee is responsible for
‘monitoring the credit quality of investments and- ensuring that appropriate corrective-action is taken
and. providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units o promote best practice
throughout the Board in the management of credit risk:

The Investment department is required to-implement the Board’s credit policies.and procedures, with credit

approval authorities delegated from the Board’s Board of Directors. The Investment department- is

responsible for the quality and performance of the Board’s investment portfolio and for monitoring and

controlling all credit risks inthe Bpard’s. portfollo including those subject to Boatd approval. Regular audits

of the Investment depariment and the Board’s credit processes are underfaken by the Internal Audit
department.
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RWANDA SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD.
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30.JUNE 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
) Capital risk management

The primary source of capital used by the Board is member contributions and income from investments.
For regulatory purposes, the Medical division’s capital includes both Capital and retained earnings. By
the nature of its. establishment, the medical division does ot pay dividends. lts equity is managed to
safeguard-its ability to.pay members medical benefits. Other objeciives when managing its capital are:

= to comply with the capital requirements as set out in the Insurance Regulations;
* 1o comply with regulatory solvency requirements as set.out in the Insurance Regulations; and

* to saféguard the medical scheme’s ability to continue in operational continuity, so that it can
continue.to.pay benefits to its members.

In 2008, Law No. 52/2008 goverhing the organisation of insurance business in Rwanda (“the
Insurance Law™) was promulgated. The Insurance Law requires entitiés providing short term
insurance. to-hold a minimum level of paid up capital of Frw 1 billion. 1t also sets regulatory solvency
thresholds for insurance companies, based on prescnbed admissibility criteria for-assets and labilities.
The regulatory solvency requireménts were effective in'2011.

‘On 7 January 2019, Regulation N° 2310/2018 --00014[614] Of 27/12/2018 Of The National Bank of

Rwanda on Licensing Conditions for insurers And reinsurers was gazetted, Under article $-of the

reglilation, the minimum paid -up capital for general insurance business was set at a minimum of Frw.

3 billion.

‘The. pension fund considers its reserves comprlsmg of statutory reserves and accumulated members
funds as jts ‘équity’. The primary objective in managing those reserves is to ensure that adequate

solvency is maintained for purposes of future benefit payments to members. The level of statutory

Teserves is legislated as set out under Note 48. Other than for those reserves, the fiund is not required

to'meet any other external capital requirements. The fund carries out periodical actuarial assessments
to assess its actuarial solvency.
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